
 

American Disability Act (ADA) Accommodations Provided Upon Request 

 
 

 
AGENDA 

Regular Meeting of the Pierce County Library System Board of Trustees 
October 15, 2014 

3:30 – 6:00 pm

 
3:30 pm  2 min. Call to Order:  Linda Ishem, Chair  
    
3:32 pm  5 min. Public Comment:  This is time set aside for members of the public to speak to the Board of Trustees.  Unless the item you wish to 

discuss is of an emergency nature, the Board ordinarily takes matters under advisement before taking action. Please sign up at the 
time of the meeting to speak during the public Comment period, and limit your comments to three minutes. 

    
3:37 pm  3 min. Consent Agenda  Action 
  1. Approval of Minutes of the September 10, 2014 Regular Meeting  

2. Approval of September 2014 Payroll, Benefits and Vouchers 
 

 

3:40 pm 10 min. Board Members Reports  
    
3:50 pm 15 min. Officers Reports  
  1. August Dashboard, Georgia Lomax   
  2. September 2014 Financial Report, Dale Hough 

3. Knowledge Transfer, Neel Parikh 
4. Current Community Engagement, Neel Parikh 
5. University Place Cost Comparison, Clifford Jo 

 

 
 

    
4:05 pm  

20 min. 
   
 

Unfinished Business 
1. Board By Laws Revision, Neel Parikh 

a. Code of Ethics/Code of Conduct 

 
Action 

4:25 pm  
 15 min.  
 40 min. 
 
 
 
 
 
15 min. 
  5 min. 
  5 min. 

New Business  
1. Pierce County Library Foundation Annual Report, Lynne Hoffman 
2. 2015 Budget, Neel Parikh 

a. 2015 Revenue and Expenditures Draft, Clifford Jo 
b. 2015 Materials Budget Summary, Georgia Lomax 
c. 2015 Preliminary Levy Certification, Clifford Jo 
d. 2014 Implicit Price Deflator (IPD) for 2015 Property Tax Levy , Clifford Jo  
e. 2015 – 2019 Cash Flow, Clifford Jo 

3. Facilities Master Plan: How Other Libraries Have Funded Capital Projects, Neel Parikh 
4. National Friends and Foundation of Libraries Week, Linda Farmer 
5. 2015 Board Meeting Schedule, Neel Parikh 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5:45 pm  15 min. Executive Session:  At this time on the agenda, the Board of Trustees will recess to Executive Session, per RCW 42.30.110, to 

discuss personnel issues.  
 

6:00 pm  2 min. Announcements  
    
6:02 pm  Adjournment  
 

 



 

Consent 
Agenda 



 
 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES  
PIERCE COUNTY LIBRARY SYSTEM 
REGULAR MEETING, SEPTEMBER 10, 2014 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Chair Linda Ishem called to order the regular meeting of the Pierce County Rural Library District Board of Trustees 
September 10, 2014, 3:32 pm.  Board members present were J.J. McCament, Allen Rose, Donna Albers and 
Robert Allen. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no public comment. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
1. Approval of Minutes of the August 13, 2014 Regular Meeting 
2. August 2014 Payroll, Benefits and Vouchers 

a. Payroll Warrants 3572-3574, dated 08/01/14 – 08/31/14 in the amount of $1,921.25 
b. Payroll Disbursement Voucher dated 08/05/14 in the amount of $626,090.48 
c. Payroll Disbursement Voucher dated 08/20/14 in the amount of $576,974.57 
d. Accounts Payable Warrants 623074-623204 dated 08/01/14 – 08/31/14 in the amount of $948,758.40 

 
Ms. McCament requested a correction in the August 26, 2014 Special Meeting minutes.  Mr. Allen moved for 
approval of the consent agenda as corrected.  Ms. McCament seconded the motion and it was passed.  
 
BOARD MEMBER REPORTS 
 
Chair Ishem congratulated Georgia Lomax, Deputy Director, on her appointment as the Executive Director position. 
Ms. Lomax said she is very honored and excited to be given the opportunity to move into the position.   
 
Mr. Allen  said he has plans to visit branches over the course of the winter. Prior to doing so, he would like to get 
from staff a sense of the branch; what are problems and opportunities, as well as the direction of the branches and 
how staff envisions serving the public well. Sally Porter Smith, Customer Experience Director, said she would use 
the Annual Branch Services Plans and provide the Board with a brief summary of each branch. 
 
OFFICER REPORTS 
 
Neel Parikh, Executive Director, said Ms. Lomax is preparing to wrap up her duties as the Deputy Director. 
Together they are creating a list of priorities and are discussing the appropriate levels of involvement when a 
decision is to be made in the interim. They recently attended an open house at Rally Point/6 and will be out in the 
community together in the future giving her an opportunity to introduce Ms. Lomax as the new Executive Director.   
 
Introduction of Karim Adib - Clifford Jo, Finance and Business Operations Director, introduced Karim Adib, the 
new Digital Experience Director.  Mr. Adib said he was honored and pleased to have joined Pierce County Library 
System, adding that he is happy to be part of an Administrative team that works so well together. He said he has 
enjoyed  recently attending the Gig Harbor Council meeting with Ms. Parikh, adding it was evident that  Pierce 
County Library is integral to the lives of the community.  
 
July Dashboard - Ms. Lomax said she and Mr. Adib are honing in on how date is analyzed and how the Library 
conveys the information.  Ms. McCament complimented the Foundation for their good work and asked if the 
increase in donations was due to special emphasis on branch campaigns such as South Hill or Key Center.  Ms. 
Parikh said it was due, in part, to Key Center donations and that while South Hill has a large number of donors, the 
Foundation has not received much to date.  
 

 

  Page 1 Minutes of September 10, 2014 Regular Meeting 



August 2014 Financial Report - Ms. McCament was curious about the fuel expenditures. Dale Hough, Finance 
Manager, explained the Library has recently filled its fuel tank. Discussion ensued regarding the Library’s hybrid 
vehicles. Mr. Jo said  the return on investment is seven years and the Library plans to keep the vehicles 
approximately fifteen 15 years.  
 
Scout Update - Ms. Parikh reported that library vendors who recently visited were very impressed with a 
demonstration of the program by Pat McVicker, Virtual Services Librarian. Ms. Porter Smith reviewed the statistics 
on library users, noting 40% of users visited the Scout site. She added the Communications department is 
experimenting with various social advertising methods and the program will be fully evaluated in December.   
  
Microsoft IT Academy Open Lab - Ms. Parikh said this is a great partnership with Rally Point /6, an organization 
providing services to discharged soldiers and their families.  She recently attended an open house which was well 
attended.  Ms. Parikh said  founder, Anne Sprute, has worked hard to build this organization.   
  
Library Card Drive 2014 - Ms. Parikh said the Drive will begin soon. 
 
Pierce County Capital Facilities Plan - Ms. Lomax indicated the document has been revised to show a correction 
stating the Library is a public corporation rather than municipal corporation.  She noted the document would be 
found on the County's website.   
 
Pierce County Library 2030 Standards - Ms. Lomax reviewed the information and reported the Library is too far 
out to get reliable allocation of growth in the communities.  Chair Ishem asked if the Library merely adopts an 
industry standard for square footage. Ms. Parikh said the standard was created in the Facilities Master Plan. Ms. 
Lomax said a lot has changed since Facilities Master Plan was written and the many of the assumptions will need 
to be adjusted.  
 
State of the Library Presentations - Ms. Parikh said she will be presenting her State of the Library PowerPoint at 
the Gig Harbor Chamber meeting on September 25, 2014. She recently made the presentation at Wilkeson and 
South Prairie.  She learned today that she will be unable to present the report to the University Place Council.  Ms. 
Lomax will do so in November. She added that Ms. Lomax will be joining her when she gives the presentation to 
the Sumner Council. 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
 
Board By Laws Revision - Ms. Parikh said she made revisions and sent them to Dan Gottlieb, the Library’s 
attorney. Chair Ishem discussed the information on the Secretary of State wiki relating to Trustees remaining in 
good standing, just cause and the process for removal. 
 
Ms. Parikh said Mr. Gottlieb indicated that just cause is determined by the County Council. Chair Ishem said the 
Council may have standards for their Boards and Commissions.  Mr. Rose said they do and they basically decide 
what just cause is. Mr. Allen said as  a matter of constitutional construction, if a member is removed there must be 
just cause. Discussion continued. 
 
Mr. Allen suggested creating a Board policy on Board conduct rather than including it in the bylaws. Ms. McCament 
suggested using language which states that at any time the Board may make a recommendation to the governing 
body.  Mr. Rose recommended including the language under Article 5, Section 5: Absences in Article 4: 
Removal. Ms. McCament said she would prefer the Council make the determination of just cause since they would 
be unbiased and would bear the financial burden as well. 
 
Discussion ensued on whether the Board should establish a code of conduct. Ms. Parikh said she would research 
this and noted Fort. Vancouver Library has a code of conduct. 
 
Ms. Lomax asked the Board what would be on their list of ethics violations. Responses included conflict of interest, 
malfeasance, theft, ethical misconduct and falsification of records. Chair Ishem said she would provide additional 
items for the list.  
 
Mr. Allen suggested the application a Trustee completes should include the statement,  "I agree to abide by the 
Pierce County Library System’s Board of Trustees Code of Conduct." 
 

  Page 2 Minutes of September 10, 2014 Regular Meeting 



Ms. McCament asked if background checks are performed on Trustee applicants. Ms. Parikh said during her tenure 
there was only one reference check conducted.  
 
Upon further discussion, several changes to the Bylaws were suggested, including: 
 

 Use of the term Executive Director throughout. 
 Use of the term per diem should include necessary expenses and food allowance.  
 Use of the term President should be changed to the term Chair. 
 References to Administrative policies should be removed since the Board does not set or review those 

policies. 
 Appointment to committees should be by the Board and not only the Chair. 
 The Board should review the bylaws periodically. 

 
Mr. Allen requested to see the revisions prior to when the agenda packet is published. 
 
Facilities Master Plan: Funding Options - Mr. Jo reviewed the various funding options available to the Library. 
Ms. McCament asked whether the General obligations bond "considerations"  should include that this can be used 
to build all new libraries all at once. Ms. Parikh explained that the  HUD contract specifies that the Library is to use 
the building at no cost as long as it is used as intended. For joint-owned properties, capital improvement costs are 
shared between both owners equally. 
 
Ms. McCament asked whether council manic bonds reduces the cities’ bonding capacity? Mr. Jo affirmed this. 
 
Ms. Parikh said she would share histories of larger libraries who have had successful funding bonds at the next 
Board meeting. 
 
NEW BUSINESS  
 
2015 Budget: Estimated Revenue and Expenditures - Mr. Jo reported the preliminary certificate was expected 
within a week. He estimated property values have increased 8-10% which would increase revenues by 
approximately $640,000.  He has restored the capital fund to 3% and allocated 1% for the contingency in order to 
increase the cash fund.  He also lowered the balancing factor for salaries and wages from 3% to 2.5%.  Retirement 
system contributions will increase to 11%. 
 
Budget Preview - Ms. Parikh said they are in the beginning stage of budget talks with directors. 
She said the framing of the document was developed by the Administrative Team. The budget is intended to 
position the Library as revenue increases over the next two years and insuring sustainable operations for many 
years.  
 
Mr. Allen said, concerning the discussion on the materials budget, he hopes as the Library moves forward the 
analysis and thought process that led to the cut continues and that the discussion is balanced and not too 
technology focused at the expense of other material and services.   
 
Long-Term Capital Project Projections - Mr. Jo reviewed the document summarizing capital project 
projections.  He stated the cash side is very low and needs to be funded. Mr. Allen asked about the drop in the 
general fund transfer from 2018 to 2019.  Mr. Jo said the figure was an error and would be corrected. Mr. Allen 
asked if it is possible to compare the estimates to what the actual costs were in order to see how well the estimates 
match. Mr. Jo said he used actual costs and averaged them out when making the projections. 
 
Leadership Competencies - Cheree Green, Staff Experience Director, discussed the new leadership 
competencies. They are being used now to evaluate the Executive Director’s staff.  The competencies are an 
evolution of the leadership descriptors.  She outline the process used to develop the competencies. Once they 
were finalized, they were rolled out to the Leadership Team in a series of workshops. They are now in the process 
of designing competencies for the supervisors. The goal is to use the competencies as a measurement in 
performance evaluations as well as in the hiring process.  Future workshops are planned to continue the process. 
In 2015, she and the Administrative Team will review coaching labs and executive development training to ensure 
they are in line with the competencies. 
 
 

  Page 3 Minutes of September 10, 2014 Regular Meeting 



Ms. Parikh said the Administrative Team realized the Library’s core skills and qualities have been woven into the 
culture and wanted to do the same with the Leadership Competencies. Ms. Albers said it is a good framework and 
that being coachable is a critical trait, adding that culturally the Library is in a good place to introduce this 
concept.  Mr. Allen said integrating the coaching workshops into every development opportunity makes sense. 
 
Science to Go Grant - Ms. Parikh introduced Lauren Lindskog, Librarian, who came to Pierce County Library 
System from the Exploratorium in the San Francisco Library. The Science to Go project is part of a major effort 
created by Judy Nelson, Customer Experience Manager - Youth Services, to introduce STEM to youth. 
 
Ms. Nelson reported this is the end of the first year of the three-year grant.  The program is highly successful in the 
branches and she is working with the Foundation to take the program to the next level. 
 
Ms. Lindskog provided an overview of the project. The first year, the focus was on filling backpacks of 24 themes 
directed at the 5-9 year old age group. The backpacks hold five books, a hands-on activity sheet showing local 
connections, composition books for the kids to write in and feedback cards.  360 backpacks were deployed to the 
branches. The backpacks were created with Washington State 2013 Science Common Core Learning Standards in 
mind. The second phase includes programming. Science kits will be developed for use in the branches and school 
outreach events tied to science fairs will be conducted.  
 
Ms. Nelson noted that all details of the program have been vetted through an advisory committee who meticulously 
reviewed the material and processes and provided valuable feedback, ensuring great community buy in before the 
backpacks got deployed to the branches.  
 
Ms. Lindskog shared several stories of how the program has impacted customers, noting the response has been 
very positive and encouraging.   
  
Ms. McCament asked how the idea was elevated to consideration for writing a grant.  Ms. Nelson said the Library 
had already had a similar concept with its preschool bags, which were outdated.  After attending conferences, she 
and her staff recognized the value of STEM and saw it was becoming very popular. They recognized the value of 
incorporating STEM with their original preschool bags and the concept of the Science to Go backpacks was born.  
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
At 5:37 pm, Mr. Allen moved to enter into Executive Session as per RCW 42.30.110 for 15 minutes for discussion 
of personnel matters.   Ms. Rose seconded the motion and it passed. The session was reopened to the public at 
5:58 pm. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
There were no announcements. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 6:00 pm on motion by Mr. Allen seconded by Ms. McCament.  
 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________________    _______________________________________ 
Neel Parikh, Secretary     Linda Ishem, Chair   
 
 
 
 

  Page 4 Minutes of September 10, 2014 Regular Meeting 



September 2014 Payrol!, Benefits and Vouchers

Warrant Numbers Date(s) Amount

3575-3581 09101t14-09130114 $7,315.76
o9to5t14 $566,763.93
o9122t14 $566,930.00

623205-623346 09/01t14-09130114 $1,156,848.29

Payroll Warrants
Disbursement Voucher - Payroll & Acct Payable
Disbursement Voucher - Payroll & Acct Payable
Accounts Payable Warrants
Total: $2,297,857.98



pyCkHist
101112014 10:25:53AM

Check History Listing
Pierce County Library System

Page:

Check # Bank Paid to Status Can/Vd Date Pay Period Dates Dir DeP Amount

3575
3576
3577
3578
3579
3580
3581

pr
pr
pr
pr
pr
pr
pr

Bank of America
Bank of America
Bank of America
Bank of America
Bank of America
Bank of America
Bank of America

MURPHY, MARGARET
ADIB, KARIM
TROTT, EMILIE
MAURINS, ANALISE
MICLETTE, VICTORIA
FIORINO, WLLIAM
TAYLOR, GEORGE

o8t16t14 - 08t31t14
o8t't6114 - 08131114

09t01114 - o9115114
o9t01114 - ogt15t't4
09to1114 - o9t15t14
o9to1t14 - o9l'l5l'14
o9to1t14 - o9t15114

09/05/2014
oslosDo14
09t22t2014
0912212014
o9122t2014
o9t22t2014
09t22t2014

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

1,198.44
3,0'14.84
1.467.30

313.63
508.44
470.22
342.89

7,315.76

Checks in report 7 G.and Total: 0.00 7,315.76

Page:



Pierce Counfi Rurul Libran District: Ore 04 Sch: Pay Date: 09/05/14

COUNTY OF PIERCE
BUDGET AND FINANCE DEPARTMENT

Fica ER and Medicare - \A/ire to
DIR DEP-flle to Columbia

the total amt below into PCLS payroll

Christv Telli

Date:

91412014Christv Telli

DJVo90520 14PCcopy201 4.xlsx



Pierce Countv Raral Libram Districl: Ors 04 Sch: Pav Date: 09/22/14

COUNTY OF PIERCE
BUDGET AND FINANCE DEPARTMENT

DESCRIPTION

Fica ER and Medicare - Wre to lR
s417,004.86DIR DEP-file to Columbia

$16,167.39941 refund for 2nd

the total amt below into PCLS payroll

s566,930.00

9t1812014Christy TelliChristv Tellin

DJV 0922201 4P Ccopy2o1 4.xlsx



Check History Listing
Pierce County Library System

Page: I
1010112014 10:25AM

Bank code: boa

Check # Status Check Total

623205 0910212014
623206 09102t2014
623207 0910212014
623208 09t0212014
623209 0910212014
623210 0910212014
623211 09t0212014
623212 0910212014
623213 09t0212014
623214 09t02t2014
623215 09102t2014
623216 09104t2014
623217 0910412014
623218 09104t2014
623219 0910412014
623220 09104t2014
623221 09104t2014
623222 0910412014
623223 09104t2014
623224 0910412014
623225 09104t2014
623226 0910412014
623227 0910412014
623228 0910412014
623229 0910512014
623230 09t05t2014
623231 0910512014
623232 09t0512014
623233 0910512014
623234 0910512014
623235 09105t2014
623236 0910512014
623237 0910512014
623238 09105t2014
623239 09t0512014
623240 0910512014
623241 0910512014
623242 09t0512014

713.86
626.55

36.49
593.97
372.40

2,024.82
46.17

277.75
177.90

2,051.97
626.90

16.41
677.13
184.45

20,000.00
50.00
73.50

965.71
1,164.02

507.25
3,382.10

120,000.00
10,500.00

1,770.35
8,729.62

29.35
1,423.44
2,800.46
3,486.51

89.00
19,765.24
29,585.76

95.60
475.24
64.99
25.00

283.33
2,304.00

OOO184 CITY TREASURER
OOO184 CITY TREASURER
OOO184 CITY TREASURER
001342 KRISTI NE COUNTRYMAN
OOO195 FIRGROVE MUTUAL WATER CO
006027 NATHANIEL HILL
001643 IMPACT
004625 JOY KIM
001911 LAUREN MURPHY
OOO377 PUGET SOUND ENERGY
000460 STEILACOOM TOWN OF
000363 OVERALL LAUNDRY SERV. DBAARAMARI
003938 BINW
005369 BIRCH ELECTRIC LLC
00591 3 BRADBURY ASSOCIATES DBA GOSSAGE
OOO895 COLUMBIA BANK
001512 DAILY JOURNAL OF COMMERCE
005272 GREEN EFFECTS INC
001534 PEDERSON PAINTING
OO129O REGIONAL BUILDING SVCS CORP
001698 TOUCHTECH SYSTEMS INC
OO178O UNIVERSITY PLACE CITY OF
OOO5O2 URBAN LIBRARIES COUNCIL
OOO534 WCP SOLUTIONS
OOO83O BAKER & TAYLOR
OOOO99 BRILLIANCE CORPORATION
005652 CAVENDISH SQUARE
OOO161 CENGAGE LEARNING
OOOO93 PAYMENT PROCESSING CENTER EBSCO
006033 HARVARD BUSINESS REVIEW
OOO243 INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES
OOO352 MIDWEST TAPE
000406 RECORDED BOOKS LLC
OO1 060 SCHOLASTIC LIBRARY PUBLISHING
OOO83O BAKER & TAYLOR
006013 BILL BEBBER
OOO242 BUCKLEY CITY OF
OOO184 CITY TREASURER



Check History Listing
Pierce County Library System

Pagei 2

'1010112014 10:25AM

Bank code: boa

Check f Vendor Status Check Total

623243 09t05t2014
623244 09t0512014
623245 0910512014
623246 0910512014
623247 09t0512014
623248 0910512014
623249 09105t2014
623250 09t08t2014
623251 0910812014
623252 09t08t2014
623253 09t0812014
623254 09108t2014
623255 0910812014
623256 0910812014
623257 09t08t2014
623258 09t08t2014
623259 0911112014
623260 0911112014
623261 09t1112014
623262 09111t2014
623263 09t11t2014
623264 09t1112014
623265 0911112014
623266 09t11t2014
623267 09t1112014
623268 0911112014
623269 0911112014
623270 0911112014
623271 09t1112014
623272 09t11t2014
623273 0911112014
623275 09t15t2014
623276 09t1512014
623277 0911612014
623278 09t16t2014
623279 09t1612014
623280 09116t2014
623281 09116n014
623282 0911612014

12.95
6.24

14.09
10,402.26

29.99
20.20

169.62
5,489.25

167,765.31
1,723.07

434.45
151.67
67.00

172.13
79,233.66

446.38
2,325.68

115.00
132.50
92.00
22.94
12.95

s94.00
158.00
131 .40
751.80

10.00
500.00

1,915.30
48,998.26

568.60
149,766.54

43.94
1,020.56

27,000.61
268.00
322.32

30.00
1,044.80

006031 SUSAN EADIE
006029 ISIDRO GARCIA
006023 WHEELER GREEN
OOO243 INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES
006030 SHARON LEVANDER
006032 ALAN SORENSEN
000506 UNIVERSITY PLACE REFUSE SERVIC
OOO828 AFSCME AFL.CIO
OOO175 ASSOCIATION OF WASHINGTON CITI
003985 PACI FICSOURCE ADMINISTRATORS
001181 PIERCE CTY LIBRARY FOUNDATION
004276 STATE CENTRAL COLLECTION UNIT
OOO823 UNITED WAY
004782 US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
OOO827 WA STATE- DEPT OF RETIREMENT S
OOO881 WASHINGTON STATE SUPPORT REGIS
003938 BtNW
OO1 650 CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY
001467 DATA SECURITY CORP
006037 DIXIE STATE UNIVERSITY LIBRARY
OOO254 KING COUNTY LIBRARY
006035 LAUREL COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY
OOO323 NEWS TRIBUNE
003811 PIERCE CO COMMUNITY NEWSPAPER
OOO857 PIERCE COUNTY RECYCLING
004397 SHKSARCHITECTS PS INC
001137 SPOKANE COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRIC
004636 SUBURBAN TIMES
003719 UNIQUE MANAGEMENT SERVICES
OO4O22 US BANK
OOO534 WCP SOLUTIONS
OO4O22 US BANK
006036 SALINE COUNTY LIBRARY
OOO184 CITY TREASURER
OOOO93 PAYMENT PROCESSING CENTER EBSCO
006028 CHEREE GREEN
004772 LINDA ISHEM
002062 GEORGIA LOMAX
OOO377 PUGET SOUND ENERGY



Check History Listing
Pierce County Library System

Page: 3

1010112014 10:25AM

Bank code: boa

Check # Status Check Total

623283 0911612014
623284 0911612014
623285 0911612014
623286 09116t2014
623287 0911612014
623288 0911612014
623289 0911612014
623290 0911612014
623291 09t2212014
623292 09t22t2014
623293 09t2212014
623294 09t22t2014
623295 0912212014
623296 0912212014
623297 0912212014
623298 09122t2014
623299 0912212014
623300 09t22t2014
623301 09122t2014
623302 0912212014
623303 0912212014
623304 0912212014
623305 0912212014
623306 0912212014
623307 09122t2014
623308 0912212014
623309 09122t2014
623310 0912212014
623311 09t22t2014
623312 09t2212014
623313 0912212014
623314 09122120',t4
623315 0912212014
623316 0912412014
623317 09t2412014
623318 09124t2014
623319 09124t2014
623320 09t2412014
623321 09124t2014

006038 JEFF SCOTT
003685 NAOMI SMITH
005484 FERDINAND WAGNER
OOO541 STATE OF WASHINGTON
OOO895 COLUMBIA BANK
004883 FIFE CITY OF
005272 GREEN EFFECTS INC
OOO534 WCP SOLUTIONS
003778 AFLAC
OOO828 AFSCMEAFL-CIO
OOO175 ASSOCIATION OF WASHINGTON CITI
OO1 578 COLONIAL SUPPLEMENTAL INSURANC
003985 PACI FICSOURCE ADMI NISTRATORS
001181 PIERCE CTY LIBRARY FOUNDATION
004276 STATE CENTRAL COLLECTION UNIT
OOO823 UNITED WAY
004782 US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
OOO827 WA STATE- DEPT OF RETIREMENT S

OOO881 WASHINGTON STATE SUPPORT REGIS
OOO167 AIR SYSTEMS ENGINEERING INC
000363 OVERALL LAUNDRY SERV. DBAARAMARI
OOO184 CITY TREASURER
OOO106 GAJORGENSEN CO INC
005272 GREEN EFFECTS INC
OO4143IMAGE SOURCE INC
005979 METCO ELECTRIC
001586 NORTHWEST DOOR INC
004933 NORTHWEST HEALTH & SAFETY INC
003985 PACI FICSOURCE ADMI NISTRATORS
OO1 534 PEDERSON PAINTING
003933 QUALITY BUSINESS SYSTEMS INC
000463 SUMMIT WATER & SUPPLY CO
OOO497 TILLICUM COMMUNITY SERVICE CEN
OOO83O BAKER & TAYLOR
OOO161 CENGAGE LEARNING
006040 CREATIVE LIBRARY SALES
OOO243 INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES
OOO352 MIDWEST TAPE
000406 RECORDED BOOKS LLC

1,594.23
195.08

10.84
361.52
301 .1 8

15.00
6,253.70
1 ,113.60
5,530.82
5,598.99
2,490.65

739.74
1,723.07

434.45
151.67
67.00

178.93
81,250.04

446.38
426.38

16.41
4,135.23
3,511.74

99.81
272.98

6,077.78
613.20
118.94
191.00

2,861.90
1,456.12

393.24
2,072.15

10,786.79
61.57

2,087.11
4,257.58

37,743.63
3,368.28

Date



Check History Listing
Pierce County Library System

Page:4
1010112014 10:25AM

Bank code: boa

Check # Status Check Total

623322 09t2612014
623323 09126t2014
623324 0912612014
623325 09t2612014
623326 0912612014
623327 0912612014
623328 0912612014
623329 0912612014
623330 0912612014
623331 09t2612014
623332 09t26t2014
623333 0912612014
623334 09t26t2014
623335 09t26t2014
623336 0912612014
623337 0912612014
623338 0912612014
623339 0912612014
623340 09t3012014
623341 09t30t2014
623342 09t3012014
623343 0913012014
623344 09t3012014
623345 0913012014
623346 0913012014

334.88
8,931.40

400.00
122.64

14,490.00
31,230.43

805.39
51.73

211.90
66,701.50
80,983.89

229.23
7,837.05

378.53
55.16

2,094.75
193.76

2,084.32
100.00
500.00

7,342.59
3,443.93

100.00
1,155.77

100.00

OOO895 COLUMBIA BANK
005862 ELITE PROPERTY INVESTMENTS LLC
006056 FRU ITLAND GRANGE
004128 LISA HEYERDAHL
00467 4 MCHUGH MANAGEMENT CONSU LTI NG
005338 PHOENIX MECHANICAL INC
005883 SYSTEMS SOURCE INC
005692 BRENDATANKSLEY
000496 THYSSEN SOUND ELEVATOR
005679 CIVIC BUTLDING UNIVERSITY PLACE
OO4O22 US BANK
OOO534 WCP SOLUTIONS
004391 WRP SURPRISE LAKE LLC
006022 KARIM ADIB
004823 AVIAN TREASURES
004814 COMPENDIUM LIBRARY SERVICE LLC
OO2O82 DALE HOUGH
OOO377 PUGET SOUND ENERGY
006060 JENNIE GRANT
OO4O84 MEREDITH HALE
OO1 534 PEDERSON PAINTING
006041 PERMACARD
006061 BLAIR STOCKER
OOO534 WCP SOLUTIONS
006062 DEE WLLIAMS

141 checks in this report

boa Total:

Total Checks:

1,156,848.29

1,156,848.29

Date



 



2013 % Change

219,019 -7.20%

175,012 -13.49%

196,606 -15.42%

3,007 -36.12%

144 -52.08%

593,788 -11.94%

2013 % Change

556,596 -11.52%

51,860 6.17%

608,456 -10.01%

2013 % Change

254,407 3.23%

4,349 -6.58%

104,545 -10.55%

43,733 -5.73%

2013 % Change

56 -5.36%

5 60.00%

$100,633.00 -90.64%

$2,400.00 -46.46%

CUSTOMER SERVICE/PHILANTHROPY DASHBOARD - AUGUST

VISITS

August

2014

Door Count 203,251

Catalog 151,396

Website 166,281

Job & Business Portal 1,921

Military Portal 69

Total 522,918

CHECKOUTS

August

2014

Checkouts 492,481

Downloadables 55,059

Total 547,540

CUSTOMERS

August

2014

Active Cardholders 262,632

New Cards 4,063

Checkout Transactions 93,516

Unique Users 41,228

PHILANTHROPY

August

2014

FoundationDonors

BRANCH CLOSURES

53

NewFoundationDonors 8

$ Raised by Foundation $9,416.00

$ Provided by Friends $1,285.00

2012 
Snow Closures    1/17-1/23 (7 Days) 
Bonney Lk   2/13-2/26 (13 Days)  
Graham   3/21-4/5 (15 Days)  
South Hill   4/9-5/6 (27 Days)  
Tillicum      7/3-8/5 (33 Days) 
Sumner     7/30-9/3 (35 Days)  
Summit    9/17-9/30 (13 Days)  
Steilacoom    10/17-11/14 (28 Days)  
Bkmbl  Ended   11/11   
Key Center    11/14-12/31 (47 Days)  

2013 
Key Center  1/1-2/3 (34 Days)   
Fife 9/24-25 (2 Days) 
  

2014 
Gig Harbor 5/19-6/1   (13 days) 
Lakewood 9/2-21 (19 days) 
 



Monthly	Financial	Reports	
September	30,	2014	

Interim Reports Prepared by 
Dale E. Hough PFO, CPFIM 
Finance Manager 



 General Fund   Debt Service Fund 

Capital Improvement 

Projects Fund

1,783,229$               7.39$                         347,934$                      

3,768,000$               83,623$                     300,000$                      

5,551,229$              83,630$                     647,934$                      

5,551,229$              83,630$                     647,934$                      

190,559$                  ‐$                            19,517$                        

3,683$                      ‐$                            ‐$                               

56,788$                    ‐$                            ‐$                               

251,029$                  ‐$                            19,517$                        

249,433$                  ‐$                            327,285$                      

(3,982,161)$             63$                             (126,188)$                    

9,032,928$               83,567$                     427,320$                      

5,300,200$              83,630$                     628,417$                      

5,551,229$              83,630$                     647,934$                      

Anticipated Property Tax Revenue 11,762,780$            13$                             ‐$                               

Current Assets ‐ Cash

Pierce County Library System

Statement of Financial Position

September 30, 2014

All Funds

Assets

Payroll Taxes and Benefits Payable

Cash

Investments

Total Cash

Total Current Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance

Current Liabilities

Warrants Payable

Sales Tax Payable 

Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

Total Current Liabilities

Fund Balance

Reserve for Encumbrances

Net Excess (Deficit)

Unreserved Fund Balance

prepared by Dale E. Hough, Finance Manager Unadited Statement 10/3/2014

Page 2 of 6



HISTORICAL HISTORICAL HISTORICAL HISTORICAL HISTORICAL HISTORICAL HISTORICAL HISTORICAL HISTORICAL HISTORICAL HISTORICAL HISTORICAL CURRENT
9/30/2013 10/31/2013 11/30/2013 12/31/2013 1/31/2014 2/28/2014 3/31/2014 4/30/2014 5/31/2014 6/30/2014 7/31/2014 8/31/2014 9/30/2014

2,327,531$        8,989,939$         4,778,073$        10,033,175$     1,444,605$       1,645,126$       2,874,141$       10,202,373$           12,760,371$     1,400,630$           1,475,909$        1,566,485$        1,783,229$        

4,400,000$        2,800,000$         7,460,000$        ‐$                   6,200,000$       4,410,000$       2,650,000$       1,975,000$            ‐$                   9,492,593$           7,500,000$        5,580,000$        3,768,000$        

6,727,531$     11,789,939$   12,238,073$   10,033,175$   7,644,605$     6,055,126$     5,524,141$     12,177,373$        12,760,371$   10,893,223$       8,975,909$      7,146,485$      5,551,229$     

6,727,531$     11,789,939$   12,238,073$   10,033,175$   7,644,605$     6,055,126$     5,524,141$     12,177,373$        12,760,371$   10,893,223$       8,975,909$      7,146,485$      5,551,229$     

214,897$           246,940$            335,358$           940,783$           289,787$          283,545$          242,692$          156,047$               203,544$           219,431$              261,541$           316,142$           190,559$           

2,024$                2,299$                1,791$               1,686$               2,976$               4,285$               3,438$               3,657$                    4,896$               5,974$                   4,000$               4,295$               3,683$               

115,866$           85,954$              97,624$             57,777$             10,661$             12,052$             12,414$             12,450$                  23,564$             11,400$                 21,305$             45,279$             56,788$             

332,788$         335,193$         434,773$         1,000,247$      303,424$         299,882$         258,544$         172,154$             232,004$         236,805$            286,845$         365,716$         251,029$        

441,712$           378,475$            315,594$           ‐$                   479,177$          428,516$          382,314$          515,366$               415,768$           374,062$              342,392$           276,173$           249,433$           

(3,448,222)$       1,675,017$         2,086,453$        ‐$                   (2,170,924)$      (3,706,199)$      (4,149,644)$      2,456,925$            3,079,671$        1,249,428$           (686,256)$         (2,528,332)$      (3,982,161)$      

9,401,254$        9,401,254$         9,401,254$        9,032,928$        9,032,928$       9,032,928$       9,032,928$       9,032,928$            9,032,928$        9,032,928$           9,032,928$        9,032,928$        9,032,928$        

6,394,744$     11,454,746$   11,803,300$   9,032,928$      7,341,181$     5,755,244$     5,265,597$     12,005,219$        12,528,367$   10,656,418$       8,689,064$      6,780,769$      5,300,200$     

6,727,531$     11,789,939$   12,238,073$   10,033,175$   7,644,605$     6,055,126$     5,524,141$     12,177,373$        12,760,371$   10,893,223$       8,975,909$      7,146,485$      5,551,229$     

Anticipated Property Tax Revenue 10,921,417$   3,627,815$      1,229,998$      ‐$                  25,516,351$   25,112,244$   23,682,603$   $14,993,995.22 12,484,118$   12,375,381$       12,288,973$   12,166,212$   11,762,780$  

Payroll Taxes and Benefits Payable

Assets

Current Assets ‐ Cash

Investments

Total Cash

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

Total Current Liabilities

Fund Balance

Reserve for Encumbrances

Total Fund Balance

Unreserved Fund Balance

Net Excess (Deficit)

Pierce County Library System

Comparative Statement of Financial Position

General Fund ‐ Rolling Comparison
(as of the listed date of the reported month)

Sales Tax Payable 

Cash

Total Current Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance

Current Liabilities

Warrants Payable

Prepared by Dale E. Hough, Finance Manager Unaudited Statement 10/3/2014

Page 3 of 6



General Fund 2014 Budget Year To Date Encumbrances
Budget 
Balance

% of 
Budget

Revenue
Property Tax/Investment Income  & Other PC Revenue 24,669,808$           13,903,112$       -$                    10,766,696$ 56%

Other Revenue 1,354,700$             928,479$           -$                    426,221$      69%
Total Revenue 26,024,508$           14,831,591$       -$                    11,192,917$ 57%

Expenditures
Personnel/Taxes and Benefits 18,560,574.00$      13,894,357.69$  -$                    4,666,216$   75%

Materials 3,333,375$             2,083,582.46$    -$                    1,249,793$   63%
Maintenance and Operations 3,870,314$             2,586,378$         249,433$            1,034,503$   73%

Transfers Out 260,245$                -$                   -$                    260,245$      0%
Total Expenditures 26,024,508$           18,564,318$       249,433$            7,210,757$   72%

Excess/(Deficit) (3,732,728)$       
(less encumbrances) (249,433)            
Net Excess (Deficit) (3,982,161)$       

Debt Service Fund  2014 Budget  Year To Date  Encumbrances 
 Budget 
Balance 

% of 
Budget

Revenue
Property Tax/Investment Income  & Other PC Revenue -$                       63$                    -$                    (63)$              0%

Other Revenue -$                       -$                   -$                    -$              0%
Total Revenue -$                       63$                    -$                    (63)$              0%

Total Expenditures -$                       -$                   -$                    -$              0%
Net Excess (Deficit) 63$                    

Capital Improvement Projects 
Fund  2014 Budget  Year To Date  Encumbrances 

 Budget 
Balance 

% of 
Budget

Revenue
Use of Fund Balance 973,955$                808,886$           -$                    165,069$      83%

Other Revenue 335,000$                106,641$           -$                    228,359$      0%
Transfers In 260,245$                -$                   -$                    260,245$      0%

Total Revenue 1,569,200$             915,527$           -$                    653,673$      58%

Expenditures
Maintenance and Operations 1,569,200$             714,430$           327,285$            527,485$      66%

Total Expenditures 1,569,200$             714,430$           327,285$            527,485$      66%
Excess/(Deficit) 201,097$           

(less encumbrances) (327,285)            
Net Excess (Deficit) (126,188)$          

PIERCE COUNTY LIBRARY SYSTEM
Statement of Revenue and Expenditures
Year to Date through September 30, 2014

no pre-encumbrances

prepared by Dale E. Hough, Finance Manager Unaudited Statement 10/3/2014

Page 4 of 6



prepared by Dale E. Hough, Finance Manager Unaudited Statement 10/3/2014

 $‐

 $5,000,000.00

 $10,000,000.00

 $15,000,000.00

 $20,000,000.00

 $25,000,000.00

 $30,000,000.00

D
EC

 20
1
3

JA
N

FEB

M
A
R

A
P
R
 C
A
SH

LO
W

A
P
R

M
A
Y

JU
N

JU
L

A
U
G

SEP
T

O
C
T C

A
SH

LO
W

O
C
T e

st

N
O
V
 est

D
EC

 est

CUMULATIVE GENERAL FUND REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE
Including Cash Flow Projection

2014

ENDING CASH BALANCE

CUMULATIVE REVENUE

CUMULATIVE EXPENDITURES

Outlined areas ‐
APRIL and OCTOBER display
low monthly cash balance
as well as  balance after 
property tax  revenue  received

Total Budget
$26,024,508

Page 5 of 6



prepared by Dale E. Hough, Finance Manager Unaudited Statement 10/3/2014

 $‐

 $2,000,000.00

 $4,000,000.00

 $6,000,000.00

 $8,000,000.00

 $10,000,000.00

A
M
O
U
N
T

RESOURCE FLOW
General Fund ‐ 2014

GF 2014 Actual Revenue

GF 2014 Actual Expenditure

2014 Budget (straight line)

Estimated Revenue

Estimated Expenditure

Estimates based on 
current year plus 
past four years 
General Fund activity

Page 6 of 6



Printed on: 1010312014

FUND; GENERAL FUND (01)

Object

Pierce County Library System
Board Report - Budget to Actual by Object

Report as of:913012014

2014 September
Budget Actual

Year-To-Date Encumbrances
Actual

Page 1 of 5

Balance Expend
otto

REVENUE ACCOUNTS

31111 PROPERTY TAXES CURRENT

31112 PROPERTY TMES DELINQUENT

31130 SALE OF TAx TITLE PROPERTY

31210 PRIVATE HARVEST/ FOREST EXCISE

31720 LEASEHOLD EXCISETAx

TAXES:

33872 CONTRACTS FEES . CITIES

33890 GOVERMENTAL GRANTS

34160 COPIER FEES

34161 GMPHICS SERVICES CHARGES

34162 PRINTER FEES

34163 FAX FEES

34730 INTERLIBMRY LOAN FEES

35970 LIBRARY FINES

36110 INVESTMENT INCOME

36111 INTEREST. STATE FOREST FUND

36190 OTHER INTEREST EARNINGS

36200 KEY PEN HLTH DEPT FACILITY REV

36700 FOUNDATION DONATIONS

36710 FRIENDS' DONATIONS

36720 FRIENDS' REIMBURSEMENTS

36725 DONATIONS . OTHER

3691 O SALE OF SCRAP AND SALVAGE

36920 BOOK SALE REVENUE

36990 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE

3699.1 PAYMENT FOR LOST MATERIALS

36994 UNCLAIMED PROPERTY

36996 JURY DUTY REIMBURSEMENT

36997 PRIOR YEAR'S REFUNDS

36998 E RATE REIMBURSEMENT

36999 REBATES . PROCUREMENT CARD

CHARGES OTHER:

39510 SALE OF FIXED ASSETS/TIMBER (GC

39520 INSURANCE RECOVERIES . ASSETS

TOTAL FOR REVENUE ACCOUNTS

EXPENSE ACCOUNIS
51100 SALARIES AND WAGES

51105 ADDITIONAL HOURS

5,1106 SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL

51107 SUBSTITUTE HOURS

51109 TUITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

51200 OVERTIME WAGES

51999 ADJ WAGE/SALARY TO MATCH PLAN

52001 INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE

52002 MEDICAL INSURANCE

52003 F.t c.A.

23,744,495.00

807,3'13.00

3,000.00

70,000.00

20,000.00

384,990.92

23,868.20

353.33

0.00

0.00

13,299,361.72

534,214.58

1,390.12

60,720.91

2,666.13

0.00 10,445,133.28 56.01

0.00 273,098.42 66.17

0.00 1,609.88 46.34

0.00 9,279.09 86.74

0.00 17,333.87 1 3.33

24,644,808.00

3,900.00

5,400.00

30,000.00

4,000.00

105,000.00

2't,000.00

0.00

600,000.00

10,000.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

400,000.00

0.00

3,000.00

0.00

0.00

10,000.00

9,000.00
'12,000.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

114,000.00

30,000.00

13,898,353.46

2,430.00

2,265.61

23,172.43

4,238.85

82,436.93

16,223.00

80.99

424,909.15

4,758.15

0.10

2.00

643.80
'185,298.48

760.14

6,656.36

1,632.98

347.50

10,280.77

5,536.07

7,669.72

574.24

492.96

5,161.10

115,273.93

24,995.53

10,746,454.54 56.39

1,470.00 62.31

3,134.39 41.96

6,827.57 77.24

(238.85) 105.97

22,563.07 78.51

4,777.00 77.25

(80.99) 0.00

175,090.85 70.82

5,241.85 47.58

(0.10) 0.00

(2.00) 0.00

(643.80) 0.00

214,701.52 46,32

(760.14) 0.00

(3,656.36) 221.88

(1,632.98) 0.00

(347.50) 0.00

(280.77) 102.81

3,463.93 61.51

4,330.28 63.9'r

(574.24) 0.00

(492.96) 0.00

(5,161.10) 0.00

(1,273.93) 101.12

5,004.47 83.32

409,212.45

0.00

0.00

2,232.11

64.20

8,647.93

1,773.65
't5.99

38,848.62

364.60

0.00

0.1 3

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

2.70

0.00

2,540.80
't,026.65

922.13

28.96

80.00

0.00

77,067.41

8,399.60

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

1,357,300.00

15,000.00

7,400.00

142,015.48

0.00

0.00

925,840.79

0.00

7,396.28

0.00

0.00

0.00

431,459.21 68.21

't5,000.00 0.00

3.72 99.95

111rr,g1?.4? 5e99

3,545,124.74 73.60

43,074.36 82.69

45,173.45 69.58

95,495.06 68.54

300.00 0.00

2,586.13 61.69

(404,134.00) 0.00

31,851.96 81.60

735,213.32 66.56

309,515.08 71.81

26,024,508.00

13,429,017.00

248,850.00

148,518.00

303,s00.00

300.00

6,750.00

(404,1 34.00)

173,130.00

2,198,331.00

1,098,014.00

551,227.93 14,83't,590.53 0.00

1,093,696.65

25,136.58

13,829.11

23,708.50

0.00

20.04

0.00

15,464.93

1 51 ,006.1 7

87,582.37

9,883,892.26

205,775.64

103,344.55

208,004.94

0.00

4,163.87

0.00

141 ,278.04

1 ,463,1't7.68
788,498.92

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00



Printed on: 1010312014

FUND: GENERAL FUND (01)

Object

Pierce County Library System
Board Report - Budget to Actual by Object

Report as of 913012014

2014 September
Budget Actual

Year-To-Date Encumbrances
Actual

Page 2 of 5

Batance Expend
otto

EXPENSE ACCOU'VTS

52004 RETIREMENT

52005 DENTAL INSURANCE

52006 OTHER BENEFIT

520,10 LIFE AND DISABILITY INSUMNCE

52020 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION

52200 UNIFORMS

52999 ADJ BENEFITS TO MATCH PLAN

PERSONNEL

531 OO OFFICE/OPEMTING SUPPLIES

53101 CUSTODIALSUPPLIES

531 02 MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES

53103 AUDIOVISUAL PROCESSING SUP

53104 BOOK PROCESSING SUPPLIES

53200 FUEL

53401 ADULT MATERIALS

53403 PERIODICALS

53405 JUVENILE BOOKS

53406 PROFESSIONAL COLLECTION

53407 INTERNATIONAL COLLECTION

53408 AUDIOVISUAL MATERIALS - ADULT

53409 AUDIOVISUAL MATERIALS . JUV

53411 ELECTRONIC INFO SOURCES

53412 REFERENCE SERIALS

53413 ELECTRONIC SERVICES

53414 ELECTRONIC COLLECTION

53464 VENDOR PROCESSING SERVICES

53499 GIFTS. MATERIALS

53500 MINOR EQUIPMENT

53501 FURNISHINGS

53502 IT HARDWARE

53503 PRINTERS

53505 SOFTWARE

541 OO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

54101 LEGAL SERVICES

54102 COLLECTION AGENCY

54161 RESOURCE SHARING SERVICES

541 62 BIBLIOGRAPHICS SERVICES

54163 PRINTING AND BINDING

54165 ILL LOST ITEM CHARGE

54200 POSTAGE AND SHIPPING

54201 TELECOM SERVICES

54300 TRAVEL

54301 MITEAGE REIMBURSEMENTS

54400 ADVERTISING

54501 RENTALS/LEASES - BUILDINGS

54502 RENTAL/LEASE - EQUIPMENT

54600 INSURANCE

1 ,192,330.00

218,189.00
'11 ,020.00

25,674.00

30,500.00

1,300.00

(120,715.00)

100,756.54

15,471.36

960.00

2,325.36

0.00

0.00

0.00

904,458.79

137,788.02

8,100.00

19,848.49

24,951.46

1,135.03

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

287,871.21 75.86

80,400.98 63.1 5

2,920.00 73.50

5,825.51 77.31

5,548.54 81.81

164.97 87.31

(120,715.00) 0.00

18,560,574.00

169,450.00

52,100.00

60,200.00

20,000.00

20,000.00

40,750.00

841 ,1 84.00

80,000.00

535,258.00

20,000.00

76,000.00

816,000.00

102,040.00

170,355.00

36,4't4.00

244,124.00

259,000.00

153,000.00

0.00

6,500.00

53,000.00

244,600.00

20,000.00

53,400.00

434,454.00

30,000.00

24,000.00

19,000.00

33,000.00

2,000.00

3,000.00

33,000.00

305,000.00

129,200.00

30,150.00

68,000.00

377,700.00
23,600.00

189,500.00

1,529,957.61

11 ,593.19

4,588.93

3,366.05

20.00

5,626.78

0.00

75,843.30

824.43

28,257.84

1 3,1 58.99

1 ,3't 3.1 8

85,714.31

5,771.53

0.00

1,507.86

0.00

3,863.98

't5,772.25

146.30

0.00

3,131.07

31,608.65

0.00

5,474.56

41,972.76

1,932.00
"t ,915.30

0.00

0.00

0.00

296.83

0.00

4,808.96

2,225.84

2,269.76

5,233.18

85,808.70
5,021.56

0.00

13,894,357.69

130,071.28

38,785.37

37,826.94

11,640.44

16,921.48

37,522.45

546,114.15

12,405.63

309,383.03

16,266.14

23,439.17

613,730.29

50,873.00

13,286.88

7,249.93

145,669.55

231,793.01
't I 0,049.'t I

3,322.49

0.00

24,512.92

157,050.31

1 ,919.25

30,767.34

342,3'13.81

26,267.64

14,546.62

7,184.96

22,8't4.73

736.32

1,308.66

28,782.34

245,597.02

37,819.17

21,28',t.26

15,708.1 3

283,275.53
29,125.40

22,183.25

0.00

15,980.60

0.00

0.00

4,376.00

0.00

3,351 .1 0

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

7,622.59

0.00

0.00

0.00

17,366.76

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

40,601.60
7,251.26

0.00

4,666,216.31 74.86

23,398.12 86.19

13,3't4.63 74.44

22,373.06 62.84

3,983.56 80.08

3,078.52 84.61

(1 23.55) 100.30

295,069.85 64.92

67,594.37 15.51

225,874.97 57.80

3,733.86 81.33

52,560.83 30.84

202,269.71 75.21

51,167.00 49.86

157,068.12 7.80

29,164.07 19.91

98,454.45 59.67

27,206.99 89.50

42,950.81 71.93

(3,322.49) 0.00

6,s00.00 0.00

20,864.49 60.63

87,549.69 64.21

18,080.75 9.60

22,632.66 57.62

74,773.43 82.79

3,732.36 87.56

9,453.38 60.61

11 ,81 5.04 37 .82

10,185.27 69.'14

1,263.68 36.82

1,691.34 43.62

4,217.66 87.22

59,402.98 80.52

91,380.83 29.27

8,868.74 70.58

52,291.87 23j0
53,822.87 85.75

(12,776.66) 't54.14

167,316.75 11 .7',!



Printed on: 1010312014

FUND: GENERAL FUND (01)

Object

Pierce County Library System
Board Report - Budget to Actual by Object

Report as of:913012014

2014 September
Budget Actual

Year-To-Date Encumbrances
Actual

Page 3 of 5

Balance Expend
otto

EXPENSE ACCOUNTS
54700 ELECTRICITY

54701 NATURALGAS

54702 WATER

54703 SEWER

54704 REFUSE

54800 GENERAL REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE

54801 CONTRACTED MAINTENANCE

54803 MAINT. TELECOM EQUIPMENT

54900 REGISTRATIONS

5490.1 DUES AND MEMBERSHIPS

54902 TAXES AND ASSESSMENTS

54903 LICENSESAND FEES

54904 MISCELLANEOUS

54905 WELLNESS EVENTS

56301 PARKING LOT REPAIR & IMPROVEME

59700 TMNSFERS OUT

240,000.00

15,000.00

26,000.00

32,000.00

22,500.00

198,300.00

729,200.00

31,000.00

26,450.00

42,120.00

30,500.00

34,850.00

790.00

0.00

0.00

260,245,00

17,819.88

72.01

1,909.39

803.05

404.35

11 ,085.79

16,535.74

0.00

1,591.00

0.00

79.86

2,470.33

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

172,255.50

6,537.54

16,081.79

26,268.95

19,548.41

142,906.66

498,384.95

21,012.46

1 8,766.16

32,938.95

14,98s.00

26,244.90

2,153.64

1,941.27

389.1 4

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

523.61

40,652.66

111,702.22

0.00

0.00

5.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

67,744.50 71.77

8,462.46 43.58

9,918.21 61.85

5,731.05 82.09

2,427.98 89.21

14,740.68 92.57

119,112.83 83.67

9,987.54 67.78

7,683.84 70.95

9,176.05 78.21

15,515.00 49.13

8,605.10 75.31

(1,363.64) 272.61

(1,941.27) 0.00

(389.14) 0.00

260,245.00 0.00

ALL OTHER EXPENSES

TOTAL FOR EXPENSE ACCOUNTS

NET SURPLUS / DEFICIT

7,463,934.00 501,839.49 4,669,960.40 249,433.40 2,5U,540.20 65.91

26,024,508.00 2,031,797.10 18,564,318.09 249,433.40 7,210,756.51 72.29

0.00 (1,480,569.17) 13,732,727.561 (249,433.40) 3,982,160.96 0.00



Printed on: 1010312014

FUND: DEBT SERVICE FUND (20)

Object

Pierce County Library System
Board Report - Budget to Actual by Object

Report as of 913012014

2014 September
Budget Actual

Year-To-Date Encumbrances
Actual

Page 4 of 5

Balance Expend
otto

REVENUE ACCOUilTS
31112 PROPERTY TMES DELINQUENT

TAXES:

36110 INVESTMENT INCOME

CHARGES OTHER:

TOTAL FOR REVENUE ACCOUNTS

0.00 0.'t2 0.00 (0.12) 0.00

(0.12) 0.00

(63.06) 0.00

0.00

0.00

0.02

6.49

0.12

63.06

0.00

0.00

0.00 (63.06) 0.00

6.51 63.18 0.00 (53.18) 0.00

NET SURPLUS / DEFICIT 6.51 63.18 0.00 (63.18) 0.00

6.49



Printed on: 1010312014

FUND: CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS FUND (30)

Pierce County Library System
Board Report - Budget to Actual by Object

Report as of: 9/30/2014

2014 September
Budget Actual

Year-To-Date Encumbrances
Actual

Page 5 of 5

Balance Expend
otto

Object

973,955.00

0.00

175,000.00

0.00

160,000.00

0.00

38.36

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

808,886.00

596.37

0.00

103,329.00

0.00

165,069.00 83.05

(596.37) 0.00

175,000.00 0.00

(103,32e.00) 0.00

160,000.00 0.00

1,308,955.00

0.00

260,245.00

38.36

0.00

0.00

912,811.37

2,7 t6.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

396,143.63 69.74
(2,716.00) 0.00

260,245.00 0.00

REVENUE ACCOU'VTS
29150 USE OF FUND BALANCE.BUDGET

36110 INVESTMENT INCOME

36700 FOUNDATION DONATIONS

36899 ENERGY REBATES

36990 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE

CHARGES OTHER:

39520 INSUMNCE RECOVERIES . CAPITAL

39700 TRANSFERS IN

TOTAL FOR REVENUE ACCOUNTS

EXPENSE ACCOUilTS
531 OO OFFICE/OPERATING SUPPLIES

531 02 MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES

53501 FURNISHINGS

54100 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

54400 ADVERTISING

54502 RENTALS/LEASES - EQUIPMENT

54800 GENERAL REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE

54805 VEHICLE REPAIR. MAJOR

5491 2 CONTINGENCY/RESERVE

56200 BUILDINGS & BLDG IMPROVEMENTS

56201 CONSTRUCTION

56202 ELECTRICAL

56203 FLOORING

56204 PAINTING AND WALL TREATMENTS

56205 ROOFTNG

56301 PARKING LOT REPAIR & IMPROVEME

56400 MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT

56401 VEHICLES

56402 HVAC

1,569,200.00 38.36 915,527.37 0.00 653,672.63 58.34

0.00

0.00

54,000.00

157,500.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

15,000.00

46,000.00

391,500.00

0.00

78,000.00

8't,000.00

47,000.00

151,000.00

50,000.00
"t98,000.00

175,000.00

125,200.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

2,822.51

0.00

0.00

1,053.64

0.00

0.00

144,663,74

0.00

0.00

0.00

7,342,59

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

31,230.43

239.97

245.05

4,049.18

36,052.58

493.50

12,202.97

1,053.64

10,'t10.03

0.00

354,453.20

20,265.60

43,182.14

0.00

7,342.59

0.00

48,066.83

0.00

60,373.32

116,299.67

0.00

0.00

12,503.50

4,700.76

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

39,1 68.97

156,766.87

0.00

0.00

28,669.55

0.00

0.00

56,148.46

26,061.31

3,265.59

(239.97) 0.00

(245.05) 0.00

37,447.32 30.65

116,746.66 25.88

(493.50) 0.00

(12,202.97) 0.00

(1,053.64) 0.00

4,889.97 67.40

46,000.00 0.00

(2,122.17) 100.54

(177,032.47) 0.00

34,817.86 55.36

81,000.00 0.00

10,987.86 76.62

151,000.00 0.00

1 ,933.1 7 96.13

141,851.54 28.36

88,565.37 49.39

5,634.74 95.50

TOTAL FOR EXPENSE ACCOUNTS 1,569,200.00

NET SURPLUS / DEFICIT 0.00

'187,1',12.9',1 714,430.27 327,285.01 527,484.72 66.39

(187,074.551 201 ,097.10 (327,285.011 126,187.91 0.00



 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 Date: October 6, 2014  
 To: Chair Linda Ishem and members of the Board of Trustees 

 From: Neel Parikh, Executive Director 
 Subject: Knowledge Transfer 

 

One of my goals this year was to transfer, as much as possible, knowledge about issues facing the 
organization and past practices. In other words, tap into my knowledge and memory while I am here. 
Petra and I arranged “Learning Sessions with Neel” about a variety of topics. The Administrative 
Team and Customer Experience Team members were invited to attend. These sessions included: 

 

Annexation: History and process for annexation election. 

Elections: A discussion of election strategy. 

Property Matters: Overview of specific issues related to Library property owned or desired. 

Board of Trustee Appointment Process: Review of the calendar and steps in the process. 

Taxes: Property tax overview. 

Lid Lift: The process for the lid lift and the activities of the Community Advisory Council. 

University Place Condo: An overview of the Declaration and management of the Condo 
Association. 

South Sound Military Connection: Pierce County Library System involvement and potential 
strategies for the future. 

Strategic Planning: An overview of the planning process that Pierce County Library System 
has engaged in since 1995: three strategic plans and a Facilities Master Plan. 

 

 

 

Neel Parikh, Executive Director *  3005 112t h St  E Tacoma, WA 98446-2215 * (253) 548-3300 *  FAX (253) 537-4600 *  www.piercecountylibrary.org 



 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 Date: October 6, 2014  
 To: Chair Linda Ishem and members of the Board of Trustees 

 From: Neel Parikh, Executive Director 
 Subject: Current Community Engagement 

 

Since the 1995 Strategic Plan, the Library has identified partnerships and community engagement as a 
key strategy for success in our communities. Over the years we have worked to increase our 
engagement in the lives of our communities. The recent Annual Branch Services Plans helped branch 
staff create targeted strategies to engage with the community. To that end, we have also developed 
metrics to measure the level of our engagement with our communities. Linda Farmer, Sally Porter 
Smith and I have developed definitions of five different measures to help us identify the level of 
involvement in the community and also measure change and growth. Sally is developing a branch 
monthly report form that will allow us to capture this data. Attached for your information is the 
definition of the five categories of community engagement data we will be collecting. 

In past years I prepared for the Board a list of organizations in the community where there was  Pierce 
County Library System staff participation or representation. I have not compiled that list since 2012. 
As we worked on the community engagement metrics, we compiled a list of the engagement of our 
staff in community organizations in 2013. Attached is that list. You can see our reach in the 
community is quite broad. This list is nearly twice as long as the list we shared with you in the past and 
is a tribute to the many ways the Library contributes to our communities. 

 

  

 

 

Neel Parikh, Executive Director *  3005 112t h St  E Tacoma, WA 98446-2215 * (253) 548-3300 *  FAX (253) 537-4600 *  www.piercecountylibrary.org 



 
Community Engagement Definitions 

 
Events 
Library participation in one-off special events in the community 

Examples:  
• Staff a booth at a school fair 
• Staff a table at a community event (TNT Business Expo or Military Appreciation Night) 

 
Involvement in Community Organizations 
Membership or regular attendance (more than half the meetings) at meetings of an established 
community organization or high-level participation. 

Examples: 
• Attend a community meeting (such as Rotary or Chamber of Commerce) on behalf of the library 
• Serve on a community committee (such as First Five FUNdamentals) on behalf of the library 
• Sit on a board (such as Tacoma Community House) on behalf of the library 

 
Promotional Partnerships 
A collaboration that results in an exchange of services, use of facilities, or other non-project 
transactions between the Library and another entity. Each partner contributes to the enterprise. 

Examples: 
• Exchange of links and/or information on both websites (Comcast Internet Essentials program) 
• Hand out or display materials in both places of business (For PC Reads: REI) 
• Logos displayed on items or websites from both businesses (Sounds Fun Mom Blog) 

 
Project Partnerships 
A collaboration that results in tangible service to Library customers (projects, programs, resources). 

Examples: 
• RallyPoint/6 cooperative project on Microsoft IT Academy Open Lab 
• Museum Passes for check out at the Library 
• First5 Fundamentals programming at Bates Technical College 
• “A Card in Every Hand” - Bethel, Franklin Pierce & White River Library Card Projects 
• Play to Learn program with Children’s Museums 
• Partnerships involving MOU; i.e. Workforce Central, First5 Fundamentals, etc. 

 
Sponsorships 
An agreement between the Library and/or the Library Foundation and another entity in which the 
entity makes a monetary gift or donation of in-kind services of a specific dollar value, in exchange for 
defined promotional consideration per a written agreement. 

Examples: 
• Paid sponsorship for library program in exchange for logo or business listing (Summer Reading) 
• Donation of in-kind goods and services for library program (PC Reads, Summer Reading) 

 
 
 
 

 



PIERCE COUNTY LIBRARY SYSTEM 
COMMUNITY PARTICIPATION 

 

C:\Users\pmcbride\Documents\Community Involvement\Community Participation 2014.doc revised 10/7/2014 

 
Note:  Organizations are only listed when there is regular attendance (more than half the 
meetings) or high-level participation by a PCLS staff member or significant collaboration. 
 

COUNTY-WIDE 
 
Aging 

 Pierce County Aging and Disability Resource Center Task Force (Kristine Countryman) 
 

Civic 
 Tacoma Rotary 8 (Neel Parikh) 
 American Leadership Forum (Neel Parikh) 
 KPLU Advisory Board (Linda Farmer) 
 

Human Services 
 Pierce County Human Services Collaboration (Jennifer Patterson) 
 Asset Building Coalition (Jaime Prothro) 
 Connexion Latina (Barbara Menne, Secretary) 
 Affordable Care Leadership  Team/PC-Tacoma Health Department (Jaime Prothro) 
 Latino Business Seminar Project (Jeffri Walters) 
 Tacoma Community House (Georgia Lomax, Board member and Treasurer) 

 
Jobs 

 WorkForce Central, Jaime Prothro 
 WorkForce Pierce Leadership Team (Jaime Prothro) 
 Washington Women’s Employment & Education (Chereé Green) 
 Tacoma/Pierce County Growth Partnership (Neel Parikh) 

 
Military 

 WA State Military Kids & Family Partnership (Meghan Sullivan) 
 WA Air & Army National Guard Youth (Corrine Weatherly) 

 
Youth 

 Alliance for Youth of Pierce County (Judy Nelson, Treasurer) 
 Early Learning Advisory Council (Susan Anderson-Newham (attends, not a member)) 
 First Five Fundamentals  (Judy Nelson, Co-Chair; Susan Anderson-Newham) 
 First Five Community Awareness Team (Judy Nelson, Co-Chair; Susan Anderson-Newham) 
 United Way Impact Team: Early Learning  (Judy Nelson) 
 Family Support Partnership (Susan Anderson-Newham) 
 Infant/Toddler Task Force(Susan Anderson-Newham) 
 Linkages Advisory Group(Judy Nelson, Susan Anderson-Newham) 
 Mid-County Leadership - Summer Learning Loss Team (Judy Nelson) 
 Thrive by Five Early Learning Coalition (Susan Anderson-Newham) 
 Early Learning Alliance Conference Calls (Susan Anderson-Newham) 

 
Regional Consortiums 

 Mid-County Leadership Team (David Durante, Keith Knutsen, Neel Parikh) 
 North PC Community Coalition (Dana Brownfield) 
 Sumner/Bonney Lake Coalition for Families (Rebecca Ryan) 
 White River Families First Coalition (Catherine O’Brien, Gretchen Nelson, Greg Dyer) 
 Prairie Ridge Community Coalition (Lauren Murphy) 
 Bethel Community Coalition Parkland/Spanaway (Barbara Menne, Corrine Weatherly,  

  Laura Farrow) 
 
 

 



PIERCE COUNTY LIBRARY SYSTEM 
COMMUNITY PARTICIPATION 

 

C:\Users\pmcbride\Documents\Community Involvement\Community Participation 2014.doc revised 10/7/2014 

Professional 
 

 WA Finance Officers Association (Dale Hough, Board member and Conference Chair 2015) 
 ALA/YALSA Board (Joy Kim) 
 ALA/PLA Board - 2014 (Georgia Lomax) 
 ALSC/PLA Every Child Ready to Read (Judy Nelson) 
 WA Public Libraries Cooperate WPLC (Clare Murphy) 

 

CITIES 
 
BONNEY LAKE  

 Chamber of Commerce (Lauren Murphy) 
 

BUCKLEY 
 Chamber of Commerce (Kathy Norbeck) 

 
DUPONT   

 Business Association (Susan McBride) 
 
EATONVILLE   

 Chamber of Commerce (Cindy Dargan) 
 Career Technology Education Advisory Committee (Cindy Dargan) 
 Columbia Crest Elementary STEM Program Advisory Board (Cindy Dargan) 
 

FIFE 
 Fife/Milton/Edgewood Chamber of Commerce (Linda Case)   

 
FREDERICKSON 

 Linkages (Alison Pascone) 
 
GIG HARBOR 

 Gig Harbor/Peninsula Chamber of Commerce (Joy Kim) 
 Peninsula School District Parent Council (Tamara Saarinen, Holly Smith) 
 Linkages (Susan Anderson-Newham) 

 
GRAHAM 

 Graham Business Association (David Seckman) 
 
KEY CENTER   

 KPN Business Association (Rosina Vertz) 
 KP Health and Professional Center(Rosina Vertz) 
 KP Toastmasters (Rosina Vertz, Vice-Chair) 

 
LAKEWOOD 

 Chamber of Commerce (Kim Archer) 
 Safe Spaces TF- Lakewood’s Promise (Elise Doney) 
 Lakewood Rotary (Sally Porter Smith) 

 
MILTON/EDGEWOOD   

 Chamber of Commerce Coffee Connection (Linda Case) 
 

ORTING 
 Orting Chamber of Commerce (Susan Rigley) 
 Orting Network (Susan Rigley) 

 
 



PIERCE COUNTY LIBRARY SYSTEM 
COMMUNITY PARTICIPATION 

 

C:\Users\pmcbride\Documents\Community Involvement\Community Participation 2014.doc revised 10/7/2014 

PARKLAND/SPANAWAY 
 South Sound Chamber Division (Keith Knutsen) 
 Franklin Pierce Youth First (Naomi Smith) 
 Linkages (Susan Anderson-Newham) 

 
SOUTH PRAIRIE 
 
SOUTH HILL 

 South Hill Community Council (Meghan Sullivan) 
 Linkages (Susan Anderson-Newham) 

 
STEILACOOM  
 
SUMNER 

 Coalition for Families (Kate Savage, Rebecca Ryan, Catherine O’Brien) 
 Sumner School District Early Learning Advisory Team (Rebecca Ryan) 
 Linkages (Susan Anderson-Newham) 

 
SUMMIT 

 Youth First   
 
TILLICUM   

 Tillicum/Woodbrook Neighborhood Association (Jeanine Adams) 
 TREE (Jeanine Adams) 

 
UNIVERSITY PLACE 

 Narrows Rotary (Lynne Hoffman) 
 United for UP (Lynne Zeiher) 
 UP Joint Agencies  (Neel Parikh, Lynne Zeiher) 
 UP for Arts (Lynne Zeiher) 

 
WILKESON 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 Date: October 8, 2014 

 To: Chair Linda Ishem and Members of the Board of Trustees 

 From: Clifford Jo, Director of Finance & IT 
  Lorie Erickson, Facilities Director 

 Subject: UP Cost Comparison 

 
Earlier this year the Board asked for what it costs to run the University Place Library, compared 
to another similar Pierce County Library. We chose the Gig Harbor Library as a comparable 
Library, as the square footage is similar. Attached is our assessment. As can be seen, the cost is 
450% higher, substantially due to the condominium operating charges (note that this is just the 
Library’s portion; the City’s is substantially higher). 























 



 

 

Neel Parikh, Executive Director *  3005 112 t h  St  E Tacoma, WA 98446-2215 * (253) 548-3300 *  FAX (253) 537-4600 *  www.piercecountylibrary.org  

 

 

 

 

 

 Date: September 30, 2014  

 To: Chair Linda Ishem and members of the Board of Trustees 

 From: Neel Parikh, Executive Director 
 Subject: Board Bylaws Revision 

 

I have attached a revision of the bylaws based on our conversation during our last Board meeting. 

Once again our attorney, Dan Gottlieb, has reviewed them. My comments below are based on my 

conversation with him. He also provides some clarifying information regarding the „for cause‟ 

definition. We have ensured the terms Board, Trustees and Chair are used consistently throughout the 

document. Also, note below the revisions made based on our conversation: 

 

ARTICLE III. Membership 
Section 5.  No Compensation; Reimbursement: You had expressed concern regarding the fact that 

we reimburse all actual expenses as those actually occurred except in the case of food expenses, which 

are reimbursed on a per diem rate. Dan Gottlieb recommended adding “in accordance with Library 

policies.”  The per diem rate is based on Library policies. Dan said the original language in this section 

is the exact language from the RCW. He reviewed our Library travel policy and felt that this language 

addresses the per diem statement sufficiently. 

Section 6. Removal: We‟ve added the phrase “The Board may, by a majority vote of the Board, 

recommend to the Pierce County Council removal of a Trustee for violation of the Board Code of 

Ethics.” Dan agreed to this language. He also commented on the State Library wiki recommendation 

that causes for removal should be included in bylaws. I have attached his comment for your 

information. I will include in your Board packet a sample of Board of Trustees Codes of Ethics, or in 

one case a Code of Conduct, for your review and discussion. 

 

ARTICLE VI. The Library Director 
During the Board meeting it was pointed out that the original title “Responsibilities of the Library 

Director” applied to only one aspect of this article. The other three statements in this article relate to 

the appointment of the Library Director, evaluation of the Library Director and appointment of an 

acting Library Director. In order to clarify the items under this section, I have changed the section title 

to simply “The Library Director.” We also corrected the job title to Executive Director. I hope this 

terminology covers all the articles in that section. 

 

ARTICLE X. Amendments 
We have added a section which states the Board will periodically review the bylaws. 

 

 







 
 
HCMP comments 7/29/14 
 
 
 
 
Bylaws of the Pierce County Library System Board of Trustees 
 
ARTICLE I. Name 
 
The name of the rural county library district duly established pursuant to chapter 27.12 RCW is the "Pierce County 
Rural Library District,"  but it shall do business as “Pierce County Library System” (the “Library”). The name of the 
governing body shall be the “Pierce County Library System Board of Trustees” (the “Board”). Individual members 
are referred to herein as “Trustees.” 
 
ARTICLE II. Object 
 
The object of the Board shall be: to perform all functions and duties of the library board of trustees as authorized by 
chapter 27.12 RCW, as amended and all other laws as may be applicable, or may hereafter become law. The Board of 
Trustees of Pierce County Library System shall be responsible for the provision of public library services to the 
residents of unincorporated Pierce County and the residents of cities that annex to or contract with Pierce County 
Library System for library services.  The management and control of the Library is vested in the Board. 
 
ARTICLE III. Membership 
 
Section 1. Appointment: In accordance with RCW 27.12.190, a Board of five (5) trustees will be appointed by the 
Pierce County Council. Any resident of the Pierce County Library System shall be eligible for membership. 
 
Section 2. Term: Trustees may be appointed for five (5) year terms. No person shall be appointed for more than two 
(2) consecutive full terms. 
 
Section 3. Vacancies:  The Board shall adopt a process for recommending candidates to fill vacancies.Vacancies 
shall be filled for unexpired terms as soon as possible in the manner in which Trustees are regularly chosen. A 
Trustee appointed to fill a vacancy shall serve the remainder of the term of the Trustee replaced. The Board shall 
adopt a process for recommending candidates to fill vacancies. 
 
Section 4. Vacancies Due to Unexpired Terms: Vacancies shall be filled for unexpired terms as soon as possible in 
the manner in which Trustees are regularly chosen. A Trustee appointed to fill a vacancy shall serve the remainder of 
the term of the Trustee replaced. The Board shall adopt a process for recommending candidates to fill vacancies. A 
Trustee who fills the unexpired term of another Trustee may serve an additional two full terms. 
 
Section 4.5.  No Compensation; Reimbursement: Trustees shall not receive a salary or other compensation as a 
trustee, but necessary expenses actually incurred shall be paid in accordance with Library policies from the 
libraryLibrary funds. 

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Rev. 20140929 
 

Formatted: Font: 8 pt

Formatted: Font: 8 pt



 
Section 56. Removal: A Trustee may only be removed for just cause by the Pierce County Council. The Board may, 
by a majority vote of the Board, recommend to the Pierce County Council removal of a Trustee for violation of the 
Board Code of Ethics. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ARTICLE IV. Officers 
 
Section 1. Election: The Board shall elect from its membership a Chair and Vice-Chair at the December meeting.   
 
Section 2. Vacancies: Vacancies in either such office shall be filled by vote of the Board at the next regular meeting 
of the Board after the vacancy occurs. 
 
Section 23. Term: Officers elected shall serve January  through December of the following year or until their 
successors are elected if later; provided, that any officer may succeed himself/herself. 
 
Section 34. Chair: The Chair of the Board shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Trustees, appoint all 
committees, act and perform all other duties necessary for the fulfillment of the objectives and decisions of the Board 
of Trustees. 
 
Section 45. Vice-Chair: The Vice Chair shall preside in the absence of the Chair and fulfill the duties of the Chair in 
the Chair's absence, inability to serve or removal from office. 
 
Section 56. Secretary: The Library Director or her/his designate shall serve as Secretary of the Board. The Secretary 
shall ensure that a true and accurate record is maintained of all meetings of the Board. 
 
ARTICLE V. Meetings 
 
Section 1. Regular Meetings: Regular meetings shall be held monthly. The date, hour and location shall be set by 
the Board. A resolution scheduling recurring meetings for the year will be approved at the November meeting. 
 
Section 2. Special Meetings, Emergency Meetings and Study Sessions: Special meetings, Emergency meetings, 
and Study Sessions may be scheduled and notice given according to the laws of the State of Washington. 
 
Section 3. Open Public Meetings:  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, all meetings of the Board, and 
notices thereof, shall comply with the Open Public Meetings Act, chapter 42.30 RCW. 
 

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Rev. 20140929 
 

Formatted: Font: 8 pt

Formatted: Font: 8 pt



Section 4. Quorum: A majority of all members of the Board shall constitute a quorum. A quorum is required  for 
voting on the transaction of business or to take action on any item coming before the Board.. A majority of those 
present is necessary to take action on any item coming before the Board. 
 
Section 5. Absences (current): It is the intention of the Board to maintain full representation of the members in all 
policy-making decisions. Therefore, regular attendance of Trustees is encouraged and monitored by the Board. 
 
Section 5. Absences (optional): A Trustee shall attend all meetings and perform all duties obligatory to fulfilling 
his/her responsibilities as designated in the Trustee Job Description. attached as Exhibit A hereto.  When any Trustee  
fails to attend three (3) Board meetings in a consecutive twelve (12) month period, the County Council may be 
requested by the Board, by a majority vote of the Board, to replace that member by making a new appointment. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Section 6. Teleconference or Videoconference Participation: Trustees may participate by teleconference or 
videoconference in any meeting of the Board subject to reasonable technical availability at the meeting location.  
Such participation shall be permitted for all purposes provided by law, including for the purpose of constituting a 
quorum and for the purpose of voting on any motion or resolution at said meeting. 
 
Section 7. Form of Action:  The Board, by motion or resolution, determines all actions and decisions.  Motions and 
seconds to motions shall be made orally and decided by voice vote. The President Chair may move, second, or vote 
upon actions that are before the Board.  A simple majority is needed to pass a motion or adopt a resolution unless 
otherwise specified or required by the laws of the State of Washington or these Bylaws.  The President Chair may call 
the roll on any vote when considered necessary for clarification. 
 
Section 8. Board Acting as a Body (optional): The Board shall act as a body in making its decisions and 
announcing them. No Trustee shall speak or act for the Board without prior authorization of the Board, except as 
otherwise provided for in these Bylaws.  
 
Section 9. Records of Board Meetings: The proceedings of Board meetings shall be recorded in minutes, 
maintained in the Administrative Offices of the Library and posted on the Library’s website.  The minutes shall 
consist primarily of a record of the action taken, including members’ votes.  Minutes of each meeting shall be 
provided to all Trustees prior to the next regular meeting for their reference and correction.  At the next regular 
meeting, the Board shall consider the minutes for approval or necessary corrections. 
 
ARTICLE VI. Responsibilities of tThe Library Director 
 
Section 1. Appointment: The Board of Trustees shall select and appoint employ a competent and qualified library 
director (the  Executive Director) who shall manage library operations on behalf of the Board and under its review 
and direction and shall serve at the Board’s pleasure. 
 

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Font: Bold, Italic

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Font: Bold, Italic

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Rev. 20140929 
 

Formatted: Font: 8 pt

Formatted: Font: 8 pt



Section 2. Responsibilities of the Executive Director: The Executive Director shall manage Library operations on 
behalf of the Board and under its review and direction.  The Executive Director shall develops, implements and 
administers a comprehensive library program to meet the cultural, informational, and educational and recreational 
needs of the community. The Executive Director shall be responsible for the administration of and planning for the 
delivery of all library services. This shall include, but not be limited to, staff and organization structure, appropriate 
collections, operational systems, budget, facilities and equipment, and procedures to assure integrity and competence 
in public service, community relations, and optimum circulation of library materials within the budget appropriation. 
The Executive Director shall also represent the library Library to the community. 
 
Section 3. Performance Evaluation:  The Board shall evaluate the Executive Director’s job performance annuallyat 
a minimum of once a year. 
 
Section 4. Acting Director:  During a short-term absence, the Director may appoint a qualified staff member to carry 
out the duties of that position. During a period when the position is vacant or during a long-term absence, the Board 
shall appoint an Acting Director. 
 
 
 
 
ARTICLE VII. Committees 
 
Section 1. Standing or Special Committees: Committees shall be appointed by the Chair from time to time as 
deemed necessary should a need be identified. 
 
Section 2.  Policy Committee:  The Board as a whole shall serve as the Policy Committee.  The purpose of the 
Policy Committee shall be to investigate specific areas in which policy changes or  
development of policy may be needed or otherwise deemed appropriate, make necessary modifications of policy and 
review approved policies at stated intervals. 
 
 
ARTICLE VIII.  BOARD POLICIES  
 
Section 1. Definition: Library Board policies are those statements duly adopted by the Board to direct the activities 
of the Library. Additional administrative policies will be established under the authority of the eExecutive dDirector 
or designee and shall be consistent with Board policies. 
 
Section 2. Adoption  or Amendment of Board Policies: Each Library Board policy shall be adopted or amended by 
the Board by a majority vote of the Trustees in office or by a unanimous vote of a quorum, provided the proposed 
policy has been presented at a previous meeting. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a policy may be presented, discussed 
and adopted at a single meeting of the Board if those Trustees in attendance waive such prior meeting requirement.. 
All Library Board policies shall be posted on the Library’s website.  
 
Section 3. Amendment of Board Policies: Each Library Board policy may be amended by the Board by a majority 
vote of the Trustees in office or by a unanimous vote of a quorum, provided the proposed policy amendment has been 
presented at a previous meeting. Notwithstanding the foregoing, an amendment to any policy may be presented, 

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Rev. 20140929 
 

Formatted: Font: 8 pt

Formatted: Font: 8 pt



discussed and adopted at a single meeting of the Board if those Trustees in attendance waive such prior meeting 
requirement. 
 
 
ARTICLE IX. Indemnification 
 
The Pierce County Rural Library District will be responsible for all acts and omissions of the individual trustees 
Trustees in the performance of their duties as a Rural Library District Trusteesuch. 
 
ARTICLE X. Amendments 
 
Section 1. Process: The Board will periodically review these Bylaws. 
 
Section 2. Review: These Bylaws may be revised or amended at any regular or special meeting of the Board, with the 
provision that the Trustees receive copies of the proposed changes at least one (1) week prior to the meeting. 
 
Revised and Adopted by the Board of Trustees of the Pierce County Library System, May 10,  
1997_________, 2014. 
 
Amendments to Bylaws Adopted by the Board of Trustees of the Pierce County Library System: 
January 13, 1947; March 13, 1967; June 8, 1977; July 23, 1980; June 17, 1981; September 19, 1984; November 9, 
1984; July 17, 1985; October 9, 1986; May 19, 1993; March 9, 1995, May 10,  1997; xxxx 2014 
 

Formatted: Highlight

Rev. 20140929 
 

Formatted: Font: 8 pt

Formatted: Font: 8 pt



 
 
 
 
 
 
Bylaws of the Pierce County Library System Board of Trustees 
 
ARTICLE I. Name 
 
The name of the rural county library district duly established pursuant to chapter 27.12 RCW is the "Pierce County 
Rural Library District,"  but it shall do business as “Pierce County Library System” (the “Library”). The name of the 
governing body shall be the “Pierce County Library System Board of Trustees” (the “Board”). Individual members 
are referred to herein as “Trustees.” 
 
ARTICLE II. Object 
 
The object of the Board shall be: to perform all functions and duties of the library board of trustees as authorized by 
chapter 27.12 RCW, as amended and all other laws as may be applicable, or may hereafter become law. The Board 
shall be responsible for the provision of public library services to the residents of unincorporated Pierce County and 
the residents of cities that annex to or contract with Pierce County Library System for library services.  The 
management and control of the Library is vested in the Board. 
 
ARTICLE III. Membership 
 
Section 1. Appointment: In accordance with RCW 27.12.190, a Board of five (5) trustees will be appointed by the 
Pierce County Council. Any resident of the Pierce County Library System shall be eligible for membership. 
 
Section 2. Term: Trustees may be appointed for five (5) year terms. No person shall be appointed for more than two 
(2) consecutive full terms. 
 
Section 3. Vacancies:  The Board shall adopt a process for recommending candidates to fill vacancies. 
 
Section 4. Vacancies Due to Unexpired Terms: Vacancies shall be filled for unexpired terms as soon as possible in 
the manner in which Trustees are regularly chosen. A Trustee appointed to fill a vacancy shall serve the remainder of 
the term of the Trustee replaced. A Trustee who fills the unexpired term of another Trustee may serve an additional 
two full terms. 
 
Section 5.  No Compensation; Reimbursement: Trustees shall not receive a salary or other compensation as a 
trustee, but necessary expenses actually incurred shall be paid in accordance with Library policies from the Library 
funds. 
 
Section 6. Removal: A Trustee may only be removed for just cause by the Pierce County Council. The Board may, 
by a majority vote of the Board, recommend to the Pierce County Council removal of a Trustee for violation of the 
Board Code of Ethics. 
Rev. 20140929 
 



 
 
ARTICLE IV. Officers 
 
Section 1. Election: The Board shall elect from its membership a Chair and Vice-Chair at the December meeting.   
 
Section 2. Vacancies: Vacancies in either such office shall be filled by vote of the Board at the next regular meeting 
of the Board after the vacancy occurs. 
 
Section 3. Term: Officers elected shall serve January through December of the following year or until their 
successors are elected if later; provided, that any officer may succeed himself/herself. 
 
Section 4. Chair: The Chair of the Board shall preside at all meetings of the Board, appoint all committees, act and 
perform all other duties necessary for the fulfillment of the objectives and decisions of the Board. 
 
Section5. Vice-Chair: The Vice Chair shall preside in the absence of the Chair and fulfill the duties of the Chair in 
the Chair's absence, inability to serve or removal from office. 
 
Section6. Secretary: The Library Director or her/his designate shall serve as Secretary of the Board. The Secretary 
shall ensure that a true and accurate record is maintained of all meetings of the Board. 
 
ARTICLE V. Meetings 
 
Section 1. Regular Meetings: Regular meetings shall be held monthly. The date, hour and location shall be set by 
the Board. A resolution scheduling recurring meetings for the year will be approved at the November meeting. 
 
Section 2. Special Meetings, Emergency Meetings and Study Sessions: Special meetings, Emergency meetings, 
and Study Sessions may be scheduled and notice given according to the laws of the State of Washington. 
 
Section 3. Open Public Meetings:  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, all meetings of the Board, and 
notices thereof, shall comply with the Open Public Meetings Act, chapter 42.30 RCW. 
 
Section 4. Quorum: A majority of all members of the Board shall constitute a quorum. A quorum is required  for the 
transaction of business or to take action on any item coming before the Board..  
 
Section 5. Absences  When any Trustee  fails to attend three (3) Board meetings in a consecutive twelve (12) month 
period, the County Council may be requested by the Board, by a majority vote of the Board, to replace that member 
by making a new appointment. 
 
 
 
 
 
Section 6. Teleconference or Videoconference Participation: Trustees may participate by teleconference or 
videoconference in any meeting of the Board subject to reasonable technical availability at the meeting location.  
Rev. 20140929 
 



Such participation shall be permitted for all purposes provided by law, including for the purpose of constituting a 
quorum and for the purpose of voting on any motion or resolution at said meeting. 
 
Section 7. Form of Action:  The Board, by motion or resolution, determines all actions and decisions.  Motions and 
seconds to motions shall be made orally and decided by voice vote. The Chair may move, second, or vote upon 
actions that are before the Board.  A simple majority is needed to pass a motion or adopt a resolution unless otherwise 
specified or required by the laws of the State of Washington or these Bylaws.  The Chair may call the roll on any vote 
when considered necessary for clarification. 
 
Section 8. Board Acting as a Body: The Board shall act as a body in making its decisions and announcing them. No 
Trustee shall speak or act for the Board without prior authorization of the Board, except as otherwise provided for in 
these Bylaws 
 
Section 9. Records of Board Meetings: The proceedings of Board meetings shall be recorded in minutes, 
maintained in the Administrative Offices of the Library and posted on the Library’s website.  The minutes shall 
consist primarily of a record of the action taken, including members’ votes.  Minutes of each meeting shall be 
provided to all Trustees prior to the next regular meeting for their reference and correction.  At the next regular 
meeting, the Board shall consider the minutes for approval or necessary corrections. 
 
ARTICLE VI. The Library Director 
 
Section 1. Appointment: The Board shall select and employ a competent and qualified library director (the  
Executive Director) who shall serve at the Board’s pleasure. 
 
Section 2. Responsibilities of the Executive Director: The Executive Director shall manage Library operations on 
behalf of the Board and under its review and direction.  The Executive Director shall develop, implement and 
administer a comprehensive library program to meet the cultural, informational, educational and recreational needs of 
the community. The Executive Director shall be responsible for the administration of and planning for the delivery of 
all library services. This shall include, but not be limited to, staff and organization structure, appropriate collections, 
operational systems, budget, facilities and equipment, and procedures to assure integrity and competence in public 
service, community relations, and optimum circulation of library materials within the budget appropriation. The 
Executive Director shall also represent the Library to the community. 
 
Section 3. Performance Evaluation:  The Board shall evaluate the Executive Director’s job performance at a 
minimum of once a year. 
 
Section 4. Acting Director:  During a short-term absence, the Director may appoint a qualified staff member to carry 
out the duties of that position. During a period when the position is vacant or during a long-term absence, the Board 
shall appoint an Acting Director. 
 
 
 
 
ARTICLE VII. Committees 
 
Rev. 20140929 
 



Section 1. Committees: Committees shall be appointed by the Chair from time to time as deemed necessary should a 
need be identified. 
 
 
 
ARTICLE VIII.  BOARD POLICIES  
 
Section 1. Definition: Board policies are those statements duly adopted by the Board to direct the activities of the 
Library. Additional administrative policies will be established under the authority of the Executive Director or 
designee and shall be consistent with Board policies. 
 
Section 2. Adoption  or Amendment of Board Policies: Each Board policy shall be adopted or amended by the 
Board by a majority vote of the Trustees in office or by a unanimous vote of a quorum. All Board policies shall be 
posted on the Library’s website.  
 
 
 
ARTICLE IX. Indemnification 
 
The Library will be responsible for all acts and omissions of the individual Trustees in the performance of their duties 
as such. 
 
ARTICLE X. Amendments 
 
Section 1. Process: The Board will periodically review these Bylaws. 
 
Section 2. Review: These Bylaws may be revised or amended at any regular or special meeting of the Board, with the 
provision that the Trustees receive copies of the proposed changes at least one (1) week prior to the meeting. 
 
Revised and Adopted by the Board of Trustees of the Pierce County Library System, _________, 2014. 
 
Amendments to Bylaws Adopted by the Board of Trustees of the Pierce County Library System: 
January 13, 1947; March 13, 1967; June 8, 1977; July 23, 1980; June 17, 1981; September 19, 1984; November 9, 
1984; July 17, 1985; October 9, 1986; May 19, 1993; March 9, 1995, May 10,  1997; xxxx 2014 
 

Rev. 20140929 
 



 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 Date: October 6, 2014  
 To: Chair Linda Ishem and members of the Board of Trustees 

 From: Neel Parikh, Executive Director 
 Subject: Code of Ethics/Code of Conduct 

 

During the Board discussion regarding the bylaws and a definition of Just Cause, the Board agreed that 
you wanted to develop a Code of Ethics or Code of Conduct for the Board of Trustees and reference a 
violation of the code of ethics as a reason for removal from the Board. I have attached for your 
information some examples of the ethics and conduct statements for Trustees. These statements are 
specifically directed at Boards. Many of the ethics statements that I could find, such as the those in the 
state and county code, are directed toward staff and elected officials. I thought these statements were a 
good place to start. I have also attached your existing Conflict of Interest statement.  

During the Board meeting I would like to discuss the philosophy of a Code of Ethics or Code of 
Conduct statement and the general overview of the concepts that you wish to have incorporated in such 
a statement. Based on this conversation, Library staff will develop a draft for your review at the next 
Board meeting. 

Note: The United for Libraries statement was created by a professional association and may be an 
excellent place to begin. You will notice that some of the statements will include the conflict of interest 
concept. The document called Potential Conflicts and Ethical Guidelines is provided by the 
Washington Municipal Research and Services Center (MRSC). This document was given to me by 
Spokane Library District and is the document they share with their Trustees. The ICMA Code of 
Ethics was recommended to me by the head of the Urban Library Council. I specifically asked 
Directors of the large Washington libraries if there was a Code of Ethics. Sno-Isle’s Code of Conduct 
and Ft. Vancouver’s Code of Ethics are both attached. 

I look forward to our discussion. 

 

 

 

Neel Parikh, Executive Director *  3005 112t h St  E Tacoma, WA 98446-2215 * (253) 548-3300 *  FAX (253) 537-4600 *  www.piercecountylibrary.org 









































































 



 REPORT TO THE TRUSTEES | 1 

 

 

Memorandum   
To: Pierce County Library System Board of Trustees                                                                                                

Linda Ishem, Chair 

From:  Lynne Hoffman, Foundation Director 

Date: October 6, 2014  

Re: Pierce County Library Foundation Annual Report - for fiscal year ending June 30, 2014 

What is “the Foundation?”  The Library Foundation is the sum of its parts – the board, individual 

donors, business sponsors and grantors.  By being the philanthropic arm of the Pierce County 

Library, the Foundation exists as a community of donors. By giving, our donors are a part of our 

family. 

 

Over the past five years, the Foundation’s donor base has increased by 438 donors (67%).  During 

that time period, the Foundation raised more than $2 million and distributed $1.8 million for 

library programs from this generous community.  

 

In fiscal year 2013-14, the Pierce County Library Foundation gratefully received $709,736 in gifts 

and made total distributions to the Library of $ 535,181 (75%) in program support. The award 

represents distributions and distributions payable, gifts in kind, pledge payments and outright 

payment of program materials.  

 

The board chose to make Early Learning and Senior Outreach its funding priorities over two years 

(2013-14 and 2014-15). More than $233,000 is directed to these two programs (99% of goal) with 

gifts toward Block Play, Senior Collections, a new senior van and funds that are not project 

specific. Other funded projects included Science to Go; Summer Reading, Scout and the purchase 

of two additional vans for BEES (outreach to schools). 

 

While the number of donors remained essentially the same at 1,333, unrestricted giving increased 

by 9% and Annual Giving (made primarily by individuals) increased by 16%. The Foundation is 

doing more email communications and solicitation as well as reviving the time-honored practice 

of board members mailing personal letters to friends and associates. Branch Librarian Tami 

Masenhimer was the spokesperson for the 2013-14 staff campaign, which collectively raised 

$16,197.  I would also like to gratefully recognize generosity of the Library’s Leadership Team 

who gave overwhelmingly (89%) to the Annual Giving Campaign this year. 

 



   

REPORT TO THE TRUSTEES | 2 

 

 

In 2013-14, the Foundation’s big gains were in grants. This was the first full year the Development 

Associate’s position was focused primarily on seeking grant funding. Grant revenue increased 

$350% over last year. More than half of the Foundation’s revenue was attributed to grants. 

Since the grant process is almost entirely project based, successful grants are a product of 

teamwork between Library and Foundation.  It involves creating or enhancing thoughtfully-

designed projects, matching the grantors interests with the library’s needs and delivering promised 

results.  

 

Leadership giving is also gaining strength in sustaining a loyal donor base. 71 donors made gifts 

of $500+ to total $66,883 in 2013-14, a 22% increase of $14,000 over the previous year. 

 

In October 2013, Leadership donors were invited to A Literary Evening recognition reception in 

the home of Terry and Jack Stewart on Horsehead Bay, Gig Harbor, featuring Dave Boling from 

the Tacoma News Tribune. This year’s A Literary Evening will be held October 15 in the home of 

board member Stacy Topping with author Jim Lynch. 

 

In 2014, the Foundation welcomed three new board members:  Linda Tieman, University Place; 

and Travis Mahugh, University Place; and shared membership for Barbara Nelson and Reji 

Kumar, University Place.  Last September, 10 of the 20-member board of directors had served less 

than one year.  Board members, along with library staff and Trustee Linda Ishem, participated in a 

board retreat with facilitator Joe Lawless.  Board members created personal “I will….” statements 

with their commitments to participate in the fundraising chain and the success of the Foundation. 

 

The Foundation board and staff also thanked Doug Whitton for serving the maximum three three-

year terms on the Foundation board. Doug has been an influential board member who initially 

built the Summer Reading sponsorship program, along with board member Steve Albers. Doug 

has also prepared the Foundation’s 990 pro bono during his entire tenure on the board. This past 

year, the Foundation amended its by-laws to include a provision that former board members may 

return to the board after one-year, if nominated and elected by the current board.  

 

The Foundation’s board of directors, took advantage of a wide range of opportunities to fulfill 

their role as ambassadors and the voice of our philanthropic community.  They thanked donors, 

signed letters to friends and associates, spoke with donors on the library’s behalf, shared their 

stories along with the community’s concerns, hopes and aspirations for the future. We are grateful 

for their engagement in the Foundation’s growth and continued success in achieving the library’s 

vision. 

 

As outlined in the Library-Foundation Agreement, attached is the statement of financial position 

and statement of expenses and revenue for the year ending June 30, 2014 and accomplishments.  

 



UPDATED 10/6/2014 

 
 

 
 
Pierce County Library Foundation 
2013-14 Accomplishments 
 
Metrics 

 The Foundation ended the year with 
1,333 donors – 99% of last year’s 
total and 89% of goal. 

 

 The Foundation raised $709,736 in 
gifts, grants and sponsorships – 52% 
over last year and 30% over goal. 
 

 
 
 
Goals and Objectives 

 The Foundation raised $141,806 in 
unrestricted funds compared to 
$128,165  
last year – 9% increase. 

 

 The Foundation raised $150,268 in 
Annual Giving (Gifts not including 
sponsorships, grants, capital projects, 
endowments) compared to $129,135 
last year – 16% increase.   

 

 The Foundation was awarded 
$443,271 in grants – 350% increase 
over last year and 100% over goal. 

 

 The Foundation received $45,750 in  
sponsorships compared to $40,250 
last year – 14% increase and reached 
our goal of $45,000. 

 

 445 new donors compared to 554 last 
year (81% of goal). 

 

 855 (60%) of last year’s donors 
renewed compared to 808 last year – 
6% increase. 

 

 59 Leadership Gift donors (gifts over 
$500) renewed – 71%, compared to 
50 donors last year. 



UPDATED 10/6/2014 

 
 

 
 
Program Impact 

 Total distributions increased by 
$166,903 over last year and 7% over 
goal. 

 

 The Foundation reached 99% of its 
$235,000 goal for Early Learning and 
Senior Outreach distributions. 
 

 $67,000 in restricted gifts was received 
for Early Learning. Additionally, $30,000 
in unrestricted giving* has been board 
designated for Early Learning. 
 

 $105,716 was received for Senior 
Outreach.  Additionally, $30,000 in 
unrestricted giving has been board 
designated* for Senior Outreach. 
 

 Funding for specific Programs for Youth included Block Play, Board book give-aways, Science to 
Go, Summer Reading, Our Own Expressions and two vans for the BEES Outreach to Schools 
program. 
 

 Funding for specific Programs for Adult Learners included books in various formats for the 
Senior Collection, a van for the Senior Outreach Program and Pierce County READS. 
 

 In October 2013, the Foundation received a $50,000 unrestricted Creative Leadership Award 
from the Paul G. Allen Family Foundation. At the request of the Library, the Foundation will hold 
funds to be made available to managers for innovative programs that need additional funding. 
 

 The Foundation received its first installment of $75,000 of a $150,000 grant from the Paul G. 
Allen Family Foundation for the Scout project. (Special Projects) 
 

 $23,799 was received in gifts and pledge payments for capital projects compared to $93,306 in 
the previous year. 
 

 Additionally, the Foundation Board has designated unrestricted funds generated in 2013-14 for 
Pierce County READS, Our Own Expressions, Science to Go and Scout. 
 

 
* Board designated funds will be transferred to the library as requested and reflected in the 2014-15 
financials as board designated net assets.  



Pierce County Library Foundation
Statement of Financial Position

June 30, 2014

For Management Purposes Only Page: 1

ASSETS

Current Assets
Petty Cash 147.55$                       
Checking - Key Bank 545,720.86
Checking  - Union Bank 100.00
Money Market -Union Bank 126,803.02
Savings -America Credit Union 30.04

672,801.47

Sarah Dickson Endowment 8,166.23
GTCF Rideout /Steilacoom Endmt 31,891.27
GTCF Ethel McIntyre Outreach 15,950.07
GTCF Carolyn Else Collection 14,753.66
GTCF Ellis Endmt.- Key Center 10,620.28
GTCF Margaret Ellis Endowment 29,429.06

110,810.57

Total Assets 783,612.04$                

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities
PCLF Distributions Payable 434,915.95$                

Total Current Liabilities 434,915.95

Total Liabilities 434,915.95

Net Assets
Unrestricted Net Assets 96,015.13
Temp. Restricted Net Assets 15,225.40
Perm. Restricted Net Assets 100,576.70
Net Income 136,878.86

Total Net Assets 348,696.09

Total Liabilities & Net Assets 783,612.04$                



Pierce County Library Foundation
Statement of Revenue and Expenses
For Twelve Months Ending June 2014

Current Month Year to Date
 2013-14

Budget 
 Last Year to

Date 

Unrestricted Revenues 9,231.93              191,914.51          171,000.00       128,165.40        

Temporarily Restricted Revenues

Books and Resources 167.60                 7,015.50              20,000.00         5,525.00            

Programs for Young Readers 73,795.00            282,110.00          190,000.00       35,503.90          

Programs for Adult Learners 12,500.00            120,646.00          60,000.00         15,000.00          

Special Projects 3,000.49              105,716.57          100,000.00       174,207.79        

Funds Managed by Foundation -                      1,620.00              2,000.00           1,600.00            

Permanently Restricted Revenues 10,183.09            10,183.09            6,368.13            

In-Kind 1,940.00                1,940.00                12,913.13            

Total Revenues 110,818.11          721,145.67          543,000.00       379,283.35        

Operating Expenses

Fundraising Expenses 98.00                   33,368.82            40,000.00         29,098.23          

Administrative Expenses 1,064.57              12,160.44            15,000.00         10,866.87          

Marketing Expenses -                      3,555.91              5,000.00           5,164.02            

Total Operating Expenses 1,162.57              49,085.17            60,000.00         45,129.12          

Program Distributions **
Gen'l Books and Resources 6,837.31              6,837.31              10,000.00         -                     
Resticted Collections 600.00                 600.00                 10,000.00         4,500.00            
Book Discussion Kits 250.00                 250.00                 -                    20,000.00          

Books and Resources 7,687.31              7,687.31              20,000.00         24,500.00          

Gen'l Programs for Young Readers 182,800.00          184,000.00          103,000.00       15,232.00          
Summer Reading 33,880.33            33,880.33            -                    25,250.00          
Our Own Expressions 1,425.99              5,038.49              5,000.00           5,287.00            
Early Learning Program 51,050.00            67,050.00            100,000.00       10,000.00          
Kid's Bookmobile -                      -                      -                    -                     

Programs for Young Readers 269,156.32          289,968.82          208,000.00       55,769.00          

Gen'l Programs for Adult Learners -                      -                      35,550.00          
Senior Outreach 105,716.00          105,716.00          137,000.00       -                     
Pierce County Reads 15,083.82            16,459.84            15,000.00         15,000.00          

Programs for Adult Learners 120,799.82          122,175.84          152,000.00       50,550.00          

Buckley Restricted -                      -                      -                     
Eatonville Restricted 100.00                 100.00                 -                     



Pierce County Library Foundation
Statement of Revenue and Expenses
For Twelve Months Ending June 2014

Graham Ristricted 50.00                   50.00                   -                     
Gig Harbor Restricted 8,033.64              8,033.64              1,206.24            
Interactive Gaming Platform -                      75,000.00            75,000.00          
Key Center Library 9,700.24              9,700.24              39,015.25          
Lakewood Library Project 5,610.00              5,610.00              51,567.00          
Milton/Edgewood Restricted 75.00                   75.00                   -                     
South Hill Restricted 8,418.46              8,489.44              100,000.00       100.00               
Summit Restricted -                      -                      2,500.00            
Sumner Restricted 100.00                 100.00                 -                     
University Place Campaign 3,066.35              3,066.35              2,624.24            
University Place Restricted 1,300.00              1,300.00              14,860.04          

Special Projects 36,453.69            111,524.67          100,000.00       186,872.77        

Rideout -                      1,485.00              1,502.00            
Staff Recognition -                      -                      -                     
Tuition Assistance -                      -                      1,500.00           300.00               
Friends Group -                      400.00                 500.00              561.00               
Miscellaneous -                      -                      3,000.00           -                     
In-Kind Gifts 1,940.00              1,940.00              12,913.13          

Funds Managed by Foundation 1,940.00              3,825.00              5,000.00           15,276.13          

Total Distributions 436,037.14          535,181.64          485,000.00       332,967.90        

Total Expenses & Distributions 437,199.71          584,266.81          545,000.00       378,097.02        

Net Revenues Over Expenditures (326,381.60)         136,878.86          (2,000.00)          1,186.33            

** Combines temporarily restricted and unrestricted distributions approved by the board.



 

 
 
 

 
 

 Date: October 6, 2014  
 To: Chair Linda Ishem and members of the Board of Trustees 

 From: Neel Parikh, Executive Director 
 Subject: 2015 Budget 

 

The proposed 2015 budget introduces the first increase in expenditures since 2008. 

In 2014, after four years of declining property tax revenue, we experienced an increase of 2.94%. 
In 2015, we expect revenues to increase by 8.5%. That increase equates to $2.1 million and 
reflects property tax revenue increases due to laws that allow districts to collect up to the “highest 
lawful levy,” which for us was $28.3 million in 2009. The 2009 levy is significantly more than 
the 2013 levy which means tax revenues will rise at a higher percentage over the next two years.  

However, when we reach our “highest lawful levy” we will return to property tax law limits and 
will be constrained to revenues rising by 1% plus new construction. In the coming years, we do 
not expect higher growth in new construction and we expect slower growth of property values. 

As the library leaves the recession, we are a stronger organization. We are especially proud of 
implementing efficiencies across all areas by becoming thoughtful and purposeful about our 
everyday operations. Our new and stronger staffing model, coupled with our streamlined 
processes and procedures, have allowed us to maintain our service levels and accomplish our 
goals despite reductions.  

Branches remained open and operating hours stayed the same despite more than $7.5 million in 
reductions to the operating budget during the recession. We continued to not only maintain but 
develop customer services in branches, for example Block Play, Teen Summer Challenge, and 
the Library Card in Every Hand program (school cards). Staff worked hard to focus on internal 
processes, improve operations and find ways to minimize the impact of the recession on the 
public. We implemented media banks and movie towers, launched public computers (PC’s) 
reservation and print management, and opened three new buildings (Fife, Milton and University 
Place). In addition, we leveraged private funding to create new and innovative services such as 
Scout and Science to Go. 

Even though the revenue projections are positive in the short-term, we are not dismantling the 
changes put in place during the recession. The 2015 budget builds on our strengths. We will 
continue to manage our funds strategically so we are better prepared to weather periods of flat or 
declining revenues. 

 

 

Neel Parikh, Executive Director * 3005 112t h  St  E Tacoma, WA 98446-2215 *  (253) 548-3300 * FAX (253) 537-4600 * www.piercecountylibrary.org 



Over the past five years, the library has managed to balance its budget despite increased 
operating costs and simultaneous reductions in the operating budget of more than $7.5 million. In 
2009, we experienced a major reduction in staffing and, over the next three years, we changed 
services and reduced the materials budgets. Budget reduction strategies in the last two years were 
designed to minimize the impact on staff and maintain core services.  

Over the next two years, in order to make the best use of the increases in revenue, we will attend 
to various areas in the budget that were reduced. In particular, critical functions such as buildings, 
cash reserves and technology that did not receive needed funding.  

The library’s priorities for the 2015 budget include: 
1. Address critical functions affected by the recession 

a. Wages/benefits. Staff is the library’s most important asset. The 2015 budget 
includes: 

• COLA of 1.8%  

• Compensation study to examine changes since the recession 

• Employee communications survey, staff engagement survey and 
new strategies for effective communication 

• Investment in leadership development. 

b. Capital improvements. For the past several years, capital improvement has 
been funded by an allocation from the General Fund to the Capital 
Improvement Fund. In 2013, the yearly capital transfer was cut from 3% to 1% 
and the contingency set-aside was not budgeted. Combined, these savings 
amounted to more than $1.5 million since 2012. We did this to prevent further 
reductions in services and staff. We are now critically low on the Capital 
Improvement Fund and are recommending to restore the transfer to 3%. 

c. Cash flow. The Library must retain cash reserves to sustain four months of 
operations without any revenue. It is Board policy to maintain this level of 
cash reserves plus an additional 2% contingency. We traditionally set aside 
1% of the budget for cash reserves. This was intended to increase the cash 
reserves to match the increase in the amount needed to operate during the first 
four months of the year. In 2012 we eliminated the set-aside and in 2013 we 
used $571,595 from the cash reserves to close the revenue gap. We 
recommend restoring the cash set-aside in 2017. 

d. Information Technology. While we continue to grow direct services in the 
branches, we made specific decisions not to expand the Information 
Technology department or develop and improve its capability. As a result, we 
are behind on much needed updating to provide customers with improved 
service. This budget includes an overhaul of the library’s network in order to 



 

provide more stability to all sites and enhance the bandwidth to meet customer 
needs today and into the future. The budget also includes a new strategy for 
replacing PCs that is intended to reduce the workload for PC maintenance in the 
branches. This work not only addresses a function affected by the recession, but 
also supports a sustainable future for the IT Department. 

2. Continue to make smart choices that support a sustainable future 
a. Materials budget. In 2012 we needed to close a budget gap. We reduced the 

materials budget by 25% to help us meet the goal. During this time, staff 
developed a new approach to understanding the community and their materials 
choices. Staff’s work evaluating the collection and coming up with the best use 
of collection dollars was outstanding and, as you know, won a Creative 
Leadership Award from the Paul G. Allen Family Foundation. This budget uses 
this new approach on targeted areas of collection development and growth, 
adding $240,000 to the budget (see Georgia’s memo). 

3. Provide up-to-date, future-oriented services for our customers 
a. Information Technology. Develop IT infrastructure that insures sustainable 

operations and efficient use of resources. During 2014, the library created an 
ambitious technology plan. This plan will help the library provide customers up-
to-date technology and digital services in the future. A key goal in the plan was 
to evaluate the staffing needed to support the service and the merging of the IT 
and Virtual Services departments. With the arrival of a new Digital Experience 
Director, this budget begins the implementation of the plan and its key goals.  

The 2015 and 2016 budgets are extremely important to Pierce County Library System. With a 
brief window of increased revenue, we need to use this funding to position the library for years of 
lean times. The Administrative Team has strategically positioned the dollars to best support our 
future, create sustainable services and bring the library up-to-date.  

As always, the library is committed to providing valuable services that people want and need, and 
to anticipate those needs well into the future. We will make sound decisions in the best long-term 
interest of taxpayers, customers and employees. This budget supports those goals. 

 

Neel Parikh, Executive Director * 3005 112t h  St  E Tacoma, WA 98446-2215 *  (253) 548-3300 * FAX (253) 537-4600 * www.piercecountylibrary.org 



 

 

 Date: October 8, 2014 

 To: Chair Linda Ishem and Members of the Board of Trustees 

 From: Clifford Jo, Finance & Business Director 

 Subject: 2015 Revenues and Expenditures 

 
REVENUES 

 
See the first page of the attached 2015 budget. 2015 revenues are set overall at +9.94% from the 
final levy certificate as provided by the County on December 20, 2013 (after Board approval of 
the final budget on December 11, 2013). Property values increased by 8.56% when compared to 
what the County is reporting to us (but by +8.61% when compared to the original budget). We 
increased several other line items, including the Foundation. 
 
Note that per our practice, we don’t budget for revenues that we generally cannot predict, such as 
Friends reimbursements. These revenues are recognized during the mid-year budget process. 
 

EXPENDITURES 
 
Beginning page 2 of the first attachment is the table of expenditures. It is presented as balanced 
without need to use cash reserves. 
 
Personnel Costs 
Total net increase is 5.62% or +$1,059,593. This is after including Labor Agreement COLA of 
1% to staff, estimated 2015 health care contributions, retirement increases, and other 
adjustments. Also included is a -2.5% subtotal reduction in salaries planning budget to match 
projections, at -$510,187. This was begun in 2012 and is now in its fourth year. This year it was 
set at -3% which helped balance the budget, but did not give breathing room. 
 
Maintenance & Operations 
Total net increase is +14.78% or +$485,474. The majority of the increase is due to: 
 

 Adding in leadership training, coaching training, and surveys; and 
 Increasing the security, stability, and speed of the computer network (offset by erate 

reimbursements). 
 
Note that computer equipment was reduced; those purchases will be part of implementing the 
technology plan via the Capital Improvement Plan. We will bring those costs/projects to the 
Board next month. 
 
Materials 
The materials budget is set at 2014’s budget plus $277,998. This calculates to 12.67% of new 



 

 

revenues. In 2012 the Library conducted an extensive study of the materials budget that 
eliminated the historically used 16% budget and proposed a zero-based process and budget for 
materials. The Library reviewed the materials budget and made thoughtful recommendations for 
changes, in particular, the databases and ebooks. 
 
Set-Asides 
Because we are anticipating approximately 9% of unrestricted cash reserves by year end (the 
minimum is 2%), we are not adding to that balance. We are also proposing to restore the CIP 
transfer to 3% to fund Capital Improvement fund balance. 
 



PIERCE COUNTY LIBRARY SYSTEM
- 2015 BALANCED -

GENERAL FUND % Change
ANNUAL BUDGET 2014 2015 2014 Final 2015 FISCAL YEAR

BALANCED AS OF 10/8/2014 Final (12/11/13) Balanced to 2015 Bal Notes

Use of Fund Balance/Cash Reserves 127,663 0 -100.00% No cash reserves used

31110 Property Taxes Refunded
31111 Property Taxes Current 23,502,762 25,674,805 9.24% 9.24% AV change (2172k) compared to 12/20/13 levy certif.
31112 Property Taxes Delinquent 940,110 872,943 -7.14% -7.14% AV change (-67k) compared to 12/20/13 levy certif.
31130 Sale of Tax Title Property 3,000 3,000
31210 Private Harvest Tax 50,000 50,000
31720 Leasehold Excise Tax 20,000 20,000
34160 Copier Fees 25,000 30,000 20.00% Increased to anticipated receipts (due to Envisionware)
34162 Printer Fees 60,000 105,000 75.00% Increased to anticipated receipts (due to Envisionware)
34163 Fax Fees 21,000 new  Added for anticipated receipts (due to Envisionware)
35970 Library Fines 615,000 600,000 -2.44% Decreased to anticipated receipts
36110 Investment Income 10,000 10,000
36700 Foundation Donations 225,500 350,000 55.21% Will be finalized during final December budget
36920 Book Sale Revenue 20,000 20,000
36991 Payment for Lost Materials 25,000 12,000 -52.00% Decreased to anticipated receipts
36998 E Rate Reimbursement 250,000 new  Based on anticipated reimbursement
36999 Rebates - Procurement Card 15,000 30,000 100.00% Increased to anticipated receipts
39510 Sale of Fixed Assets 15,000 15,000   

     TOTAL REVENUES $25,526,372 $28,063,748 9.94%
Increase/decrease over previous 2,537,376 (9.94%) Compared to 2014 Original budget (passed 12/11/2013)

2,039,240 (7.84%) Compared to 2014 Mid-Year budget (passed 7/9/2014)
     TOTAL FUNDING SOURCES $25,654,035 $28,063,748 9.39%

Increase/decrease over previous 2,409,713 (9.39%) Compared to 2014 Original budget (passed 12/11/2013)
2,039,240 (7.84%) Compared to 2014 Mid-Year budget (passed 7/9/2014)

-------------------------------------------- REVENUES --------------------------------------------

1



PIERCE COUNTY LIBRARY SYSTEM
- 2015 BALANCED -

GENERAL FUND % Change
ANNUAL BUDGET 2014 2015 2014 Final 2015 FISCAL YEAR

BALANCED AS OF 10/8/2014 Final (12/11/13) Balanced to 2015 Bal Notes

51100 Salaries & Wages 13,709,535 14,345,866 4.64% Includes 1.8% COLA and Steps
51105 Additional Hours 247,100 259,045 4.83% Increased to anticipated needs
51106 Shift Differential 161,206 151,607 -5.95% Adjusted for year end projections
51107 Substitute Hours 284,500 315,515 10.90% Increased to anticipated needs
51109 Tuition Assistance Program 300 300
51200 Overtime Wages 5,800 5,400 -6.90% Reduced
52001 Industrial Insurance 165,707 193,617 16.84% Increased due to higher coverage costs
52002 Medical Insurance 2,268,400 2,191,477 -3.39% Incorporates 2015 rates (more people waiving coverage)
52003 FICA 1,102,241 1,153,581 4.66% Follows Salaries & Wages
52004 Retirement 1,167,555 1,508,392 29.19% Incorporates 2015 rates
52005 Dental Insurance 241,326 212,859 -11.80% Incorporates 2015 rates
52006 Other Benefit (Cell Phone Allowance) 9,580 11,020 15.03% Adjusted for year end projections
52010 Life and Disability Insurance 25,245 26,987 6.90% Incorporates 2015 rates
52020 Unemployment Compensation 30,500 30,500
52200 Uniforms 1,300 1,300   

     Total Personnel 19,420,295 20,407,466 5.08%
Reduction in salaries planning budget to match projections ( (582,609) (510,187) 12.43% Adjusted for year end projections   
     Net Personnel 18,837,686 19,897,279 5.62%

53100 Office/Operating Supplies 155,400 164,400 5.79% Increase due to anticipated usage and costs
53101 Custodial Supplies 52,100 52,500 0.77% Increase due to anticipated usage and costs
53102 Maintenance Supplies 60,200 60,200
53103 A/V Processing Supplies 20,000 25,000 25.00% Increase due to anticipated usage and costs
53104 Book Processing Supplies 20,000 20,000
53200 Fuel 40,750 47,000 15.34% Adjusted for rate increases (fuel usage has dropped)
53500 Minor Equipment 6,500 3,500 -46.15% Decreased to anticipated costs
53501 * Furnishings 35,000 35,000
53502 * PC Hardware 216,300 20,000 -90.75% Tech plan implements equipment as Capital Project
53503 Printers 20,000 10,000 -50.00% Tech plan implements equipment as Capital Project
53505 Software 17,000 13,500 -20.59% Tech plan implements equipment as Capital Project
54100 * Professional Services 256,200 437,884 70.91% Includes leadership training, coaching, and surveys
54101 Legal Services 30,000 30,000
54102 Collection Agency 24,000 22,000 -8.33% Decreased to anticipated costs
54161 Resource Sharing Services 22,000 19,000 -13.64% Decreased to anticipated costs
54162 Bibliographics Services 38,000 33,000 -13.16% Decreased to anticipated costs
54163 Printing and Binding 2,000 1,500 -25.00% Decreased to anticipated costs

PERSONNEL

MAINTENANCE & OPERATIONS

-------------------------------------------- EXPENDITURES --------------------------------------------

2



PIERCE COUNTY LIBRARY SYSTEM
- 2015 BALANCED -

GENERAL FUND % Change
ANNUAL BUDGET 2014 2015 2014 Final 2015 FISCAL YEAR

BALANCED AS OF 10/8/2014 Final (12/11/13) Balanced to 2015 Bal Notes
54165 Inter Library Loan Lost Item Charges 3,000 2,800 -6.67% Decreased to anticipated costs
54200 Postage 38,000 35,000 -7.89% Decreased to anticipated costs
54201 Telephone/Data Lines 161,300 461,300 185.99% Increased to support greater stability, security, and bandwidth
54300 * Travel 29,200 42,100 44.18% Includes various conference attendances (pending further review)
54301 Mileage Reimbursements 30,250 31,150 2.98% Increased for anticipated needs
54400 * Advertising 29,000 43,000 48.28% Increased for anticipated advertising needs (including social media)
54501 * Rentals/Leases - Buildings 377,700 389,950 3.24% Incorporates anticipated lease/CAM charge costs
54502 * Rentals/Leases - Equipment 23,600 32,300 36.86% Adjusted for copier lease costs
54600 Insurance 189,500 189,500
54700 Electricity 220,000 235,000 6.82% Increase due to anticipated usage and costs
54701 Natural Gas 15,000 15,000
54702 Water 26,000 20,000 -23.08% Decreased to anticipated costs
54703 Sewer 21,700 36,000 65.90% Increase due to anticipated usage and costs
54704 Refuse 22,500 27,500 22.22% Increase due to anticipated usage and costs
54800 * General Repairs/Maintenance 198,300 229,300 15.63% Increased to include fencing replacements at 2 locations
54801 * Contracted Maintenance 709,200 788,000 11.11% Cost increases from groundskeeping & HVAC contracts
54803 Maint. Telecomm Equipment 31,000 31,000
54900 * Registrations 23,250 42,750 83.87% Includes various conference attendances (pending further review)
54901 * Dues and Memberships 34,620 35,170 1.59% Increase due to anticipated usage and costs
54902 Taxes and Assessments 30,500 29,500 -3.28% Decreased to anticipated costs
54903 Licenses and Fees 53,150 38,890 -26.83% Decreased to anticipated costs
54904 Miscellaneous 790 790
55100 Intergovernmental 1,000 17,000 1600.00% Fiscal audit ended in 2013; no carry over funding needed   

     Total Maintenance & Operations 3,284,010 3,769,484 14.78%

* Items that are asterisked required department heads to list specific costs

534xx Materials 3,277,075                  3,555,073 8.48% Increased to improve ebook and database offerings to customers   
     Total Materials 3,277,075 3,555,073 8.48% = 12.67% of revenues

54912 CONTINGENCY 0 0 No cash reserve set aside needed for 2015
59700 TRANSFERS TO CIP 255,264 841,912 229.82% Restored to 3% of revenues   

     Total Transfers 255,264 841,912 229.82%

     TOTAL EXPENDITURES $25,654,035 $28,063,748 9.39%

     REVENUES LESS EXPENDITURES ($127,663) $0 100.00%

MATERIALS

3



PIERCE COUNTY LIBRARY SYSTEM
- 2015 BALANCED -

GENERAL FUND % Change
ANNUAL BUDGET 2014 2015 2014 Final 2015 FISCAL YEAR

BALANCED AS OF 10/8/2014 Final (12/11/13) Balanced to 2015 Bal Notes

Use of Fund Balance/Cash Reserves 127,663 0 -100.00%

Taxes 24,515,872 26,620,748 8.59%                             94.86% of revenues
Intergovernmental 0 0                               0.00% of revenues
Charges for Services 85,000 156,000 83.53%                               0.56% of revenues
Fines 615,000 600,000 -2.44%                               2.14% of revenues
Miscellaneous 310,500 687,000 121.26%                               2.45% of revenues                             _____________________
     TOTAL REVENUES 25,526,372 28,063,748 9.94%                           100.00% of revenues

Increase/decrease over previous year 2,537,376 (9.94%)    
     TOTAL AVAILABLE FUNDING SOURCES 25,654,035 28,063,748.00 9.39%

Increase/decrease over previous year 2,409,713 (9.39%)

Personnel 18,837,686 19,897,279 5.62%                             70.90% of expenditures
Maintenance & Operations 3,284,010 3,769,484 14.78%                             13.43% of expenditures
Materials 3,277,075 3,555,073 8.48%                             12.67% of expenditures                             _____________________
       Subtotal 25,398,771 27,221,836 7.18%                             97.00% of expenditures

Increase/decrease over previous year 1,823,065 (7.18%)

CONTINGENCY 0 0                               0.00% of expenditures
TRANSFERS TO CIP 255,264 841,912 229.82%                               3.00% of expenditures                             _____________________
       Subtotal 255,264 841,912 229.82%                               3.00% of expenditures                             _____________________

     TOTAL EXPENDITURES 25,654,035 28,063,748 9.39%                           100.00% of expenditures
Increase/decrease over previous year 2,409,713 (9.39%)

     NET OF REVS & EXPS $0 $0

-------------------------------------------- BUDGET SUMMARY --------------------------------------------

EXPENDITURES

REVENUES

4



 

 

Neel Parikh, Executive Director *  3005 112 t h  St  E Tacoma, WA 98446-2215 * (253) 548-3300 *  FAX (253) 537-4600 *  www.piercecountylibrary.org  

 

 

 

 

 

 Date: October 7, 2014 

 To: Chair Linda Ishem and members of the Board of Trustees 

 From: Georgia Lomax, Deputy Director 

 Subject: 2015 Materials Budget Summary 

 

The 2015 Materials Budget recommendation is $3,511,073, an increase of $239,056. The Library’s 

Selection Librarians developed the recommendation.  They collaborated with Customer Experience 

Managers and the Diverse Community 

Coordinator, and with Site Supervisors 

during the annual branch visits, to 

evaluate needs and priorities for 2015. 

The group evaluated checkout and use 

data, and assessed publishing trends and 

public expectations of formats and 

availability. They also reviewed annual 

Branch Service Plans and market 

segmentation as part of the process of 

determining the overall collection 

budget, and then allocating the 

breakdowns within that budget. 

 

About 85% percent of the increase is accounted for in the electronic resources and e-book budgets. The 

remainder supports building and expanding the Science To Go program.  

 

Databases: The Adult Services Librarians evaluated the Library’s electronic resources (databases, 

platforms, online services) on use, community interest/market segmentation and trialed new products 

to assess their potential to fill a need, or to replace underperforming or inadequate existing resources. 

Two major additions will strengthen the Library’s focus on digital literacy by providing resources to 

assist residents in building technology skills that help them be prepared to fill local jobs.  

 

E-Books: The number of e-book titles available for purchase by libraries has increased, and checkout 

continues to climb. This summer publishers Macmillan and Simon & Schuster became the final of the 

“big five” publishers to allow libraries to license and loan their e-book titles and bring with them a 

catalog of many popular authors and titles.  

 

Science to Go: Initially funded by the Paul G Allen Family Foundation, this program is off to a great 

start, and the budget will increase to add more backpacks for the original age group, and expand the 

project with materials for preschool aged children. 

 

In addition to the major changes, the budget includes increases for DVDs and for replacing and 

refreshing core children’s book titles and series. These increases are offset by reductions in purchasing 

 

 



 

 

Neel Parikh, Executive Director *  3005 112 t h  St  E Tacoma, WA 98446-2215 * (253) 548-3300 *  FAX (253) 537-4600 *  www.piercecountylibrary.org  

items in CD format and in print materials, and in reference items as those resources move to digital 

formats or cease publication. 

 

Staff continue to monitor the decline in use of CDs, particularly music CDs, as free and paid music 

streaming services build as the preferred listening choice, and as fewer titles are available as books on 

CD.   



 

 

Neel Parikh, Executive Director *  3005 112 t h  St  E Tacoma, WA 98446-2215 * (253) 548-3300 *  FAX (253) 537-4600 *  www.piercecountylibrary.org  

The following charts show Pierce County Library’s checkout, materials budget, per capita materials 

spending and checkout per capita against those of other key libraries in the state. 

 

 
 

WSL 2011 - 2013 Public Libraries 

250,000 - 499,999 except as noted 

2011 Materials 
Expenditures  
Per Capita 

2012 Materials 
Expenditures 
Per Capita 

2013 Materials 
Expenditures 
Per Capita 

Fort Vancouver $5.95  $7.38  $7.50  

King County Library (over 500,000) $9.02  $9.06  $9.85  

Kitsap Regional Library $4.51  $4.60  $3.92  

North Central Regional $8.48  $8.86  $8.84  

Pierce County Library $8.95  $7.64  $5.96  

Seattle Public Library (over 500,000) $7.41  $7.35  $10.16  

Sno-Isle Libraries (over 500,000) $5.67  $7.11  $6.97  

Timberland Regional $5.60  $6.45  $6.99  

WA Average $6.95  $7.31  $7.52  

 

WSL 2011 - 2013 Public Libraries 

250,000 - 499,999 except as noted 

2011 
Circulation 
Per Capita 

2012 
Circulation Per 
Capita 

2013 
Circulation  
Per Capita 

Fort Vancouver 8.80 9.44 8.75 

King County Library (over 500,000) 16.25 14.90 15.96 

Kitsap Regional Library 9.98 6.96 9.96 

North Central Regional 15.43 7.55 7.79 

Pierce County Library 18.91 15.37 13.48 

Seattle Public Library (over 500,000) 14.19 15.65 18.60 

Sno-Isle Libraries (over 500,000) 9.93 13.90 13.14 

Timberland Regional 9.37 12.78 9.02 

WA Average 12.86 12.07 12.09 

 



 

 

 Date: October 7, 2014 

 To: Chair Linda Ishem and Members of the Board of Trustees 

 From: Clifford Jo, Finance & Business Director 

 Subject: 2015 Preliminary Levy Certification 

 
Attached is the property tax levy preliminary levy certification. Compared to the final levy 
certificate received on December 20, 2013, property values in the library’s taxing district 
increased by 8.56%. We continue to be at our statutory limit of 50 cents per $1,000 of assessed 
values in the taxing district. Gross property tax revenues will increase from the December 20, 
2013 revised 2013 certification of $24,482,044.07 to $26,578,473.25, an increase of 
$2,096,429.18. 
 
Note that the starting calculation for the Levy Certificate reflects 2010 original revenues; it’s not 
going to show the property levy issued for 2014. 2010 is the first year we were at 50 cents, so the 
County does not calculate subsequent years’ original revenues until we drop below the statutory 
limit. 
 
Revenues for 2015 can increase over the statutory limit of 1% because we are under our 
maximum levy capacity, last recorded in 2010. In 2011 and 2012, the Library experienced 
substantial reductions in property taxes. Property values in 2014 increased appreciably such that 
we are continuing to restore revenues lost since 2010. 
 
The Board will need to approve the Levy Certification during the November Board meeting. 
Usually, we receive an updated Certification in mid- to late December, which includes final 
adjustments to property tax revenues for the following fiscal year. 
 











 

 

 Date: October 7, 2014 

 To: Chair Linda Ishem and Members of the Board of Trustees 

 From: Clifford Jo, Finance & Business Director 

 Subject: 2014 Implicit Price Deflator (IPD) for 2015 property tax levy 

 
The IPD is used for calculating tax levies under Initiative 747. Anything less than 1% means the 
Board of Trustees must approve property taxes to be levied at the statutory limit of 1%. Anything 
1% and higher means the library may tax the full levy rate of 1%. 
 
As of today, MRSC has not reported the IPD for June 2013 to June 2014, but is projecting it to 
be around 1.5%. We should have the IPD available during the October Board meeting. 
 
Because this year’s IPD is anticipated to be higher than 1%, and because we are significantly 
under our maximum statutory authority established in 2010, no Board action is required. In any 
case, because the Library has hit its statutory limit of 50 cents per $1,000 assessed value in the 
taxing district, neither the 1% increase nor the IPD is an issue. 
 



 

 

 Date: October 8, 2014 

 To: Chair Linda Ishem and Members of the Board of Trustees 

 From: Clifford Jo, Finance & Business Director 

 Subject: 2015-19 Cash Flow Chart 

 
 
Attached is the cash flow chart for 2015-19. 
 
As presented in the operating budget, it remains balanced without using cash reserves. We don’t 
anticipate much savings for 2014, but any that do occur will automatically flow to cash reserves. 
We will have an estimate in December but the final number will be determined in April when we 
report to the State Auditor. 
 
At current projections, we anticipate not needing to budget the set-aside to build up unrestricted 
cash reserves in 2015 and 2016. The goal is to maintain 2% in the unrestricted cash reserves. 
Given our projected year-end balance of $2.6 million, available funds are sufficient to postpone 
budgeting a set-aside to build up the unrestricted cash reserves. 
 
However, the Capital Improvement Fund is in need of funding. We are analyzing capital projects 
and needs for facilities and technology. During the November Board meeting, we will bring a 
recommendation for transferring funds from the General Fund to the Capital Fund. 



As of October 8, 2014  2015 CASH PLANNING CHART DRAFT

Total 1/1 Operating 1/1 Beginning 12/31 Ending % of
Budgeted %/$ Rev Budgeted Budget CIP Beginning Cash Reserves Unrestricted Cash Unrestricted Next FY

Year Revenues Change Expenditures Shortfall Transfer Reserves (est) (approx 4mos) Cash Rsrvs (est) Use Cash Rsrvs (est) Revenues Strategy

2014 25,526,372
3.70%

909,617
25,654,035 127,663 255,264 10,033,175 - 7,327,636 = 2,705,539 - 127,663 = 2,577,876 9.19%

3% personnel cost projection adjustment; 
decrease CIP to 1% transfer; other 
reductions

2014
Mid-
Year

26,024,508
5.72%

1,407,753
26,024,508 0 0 10,033,175 - 7,428,256 = 2,604,919 - 0 = 2,604,919 8.63%

Did not use cash reserves to balance 
budget

2015 28,063,748
9.94%

2,537,376
28,063,748 0 841,912 10,033,175 - 7,375,937 = 2,657,238 - 0 = 2,657,238 8.80%

Restored 3% CIP transfer; Set personnel 
cost projection adjustment to 2.5%; No 
cash set-aside

2016 30,182,569
7.55%

2,118,821
29,373,863 808,706 905,477 10,033,175 - 7,905,642 = 2,127,533 - 0 = 2,127,533 6.89% TBD

2017 30,890,790
2.35%

708,221
31,120,349 (229,559) 926,724 10,033,175 - 8,082,698 = 1,950,477 -

NONE
EXPECTED

= 1,950,477 6.17% TBD

2018 31,628,119
2.39%

737,329
31,855,734 (227,615) 948,844 10,233,175 - 8,267,030 = 1,966,145 -

NONE
EXPECTED

= 1,966,145 6.07% TBD

2019 32,401,838
2.45%

773,719
32,867,419 (465,581) 972,055 10,233,175 - 8,460,460 = 1,772,715 -

NONE
EXPECTED

= 1,772,715 5.34% TBD

REVENUES & EXPENDITURES CASH

PROJECTED



 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 Date: October 7, 2014  
 To: Chair Linda Ishem and members of the Board of Trustees 

 From: Neel Parikh, Executive Director 
 Subject: Facilities Master Plan: How Other Libraries Have Funded Capital Projects 

 

Attached is information I’ve collected from large libraries in the Puget Sound and Spokane about how 
they have funded their construction projects since the mid-90’s. These conversations have been 
fascinating and the chart represents a patchwork approach to funding.  
 
One variable is library ownership. Pierce County Library System owns or leases all of its buildings. 
Only two other library systems own all their buildings (KCLS and Seattle). For the rest of the systems, 
the libraries are owned by cities, Friends of the Library groups and other entities. This drives the 
funding.  
 
Only two library systems (KCLS and Seattle) recently passed general obligation bonds to build new 
libraries district wide.  Spokane did a small one in the 90’s.  All of these general obligation bonds are 
under $250 million. Without a district wide approach, each library systems’ construction funding was 
different for every building. 
 
It is clear that library systems without a district wide bond developed creative approaches to funding 
branches. However,  each of them also demonstrate a situation where a much needed facility failed an 
election and has not been built. Stunning examples are the Silverdale library in Kitsap and the 
Arlington library for Sno-Isle. The downtown Vancouver library in Ft. Vancouver only succeeded after 
multiple attempts and careful engineering of the capital facility area while their more rural branches 
had not been touched. 
 
I think this is interesting information when considering future strategy for improving library facilities. 

 

 

Neel Parikh, Executive Director *  3005 112t h St  E Tacoma, WA 98446-2215 * (253) 548-3300 *  FAX (253) 537-4600 *  www.piercecountylibrary.org 



How Other Libraries Have Funded Capital Projects

Note: When a library is built with a LCFA, the library is owned by Library Capita Facility area. Ownership will be transferred to the library when bond retired

System Date Branch Project Owner Notes Type of Funding
1994 Manchester Expand

Renovate
Friends of the 
Manchester Library  

1994 - Friends expanded building.
2009 - Friends paid for building of new office for branch manager and meeting 
room expansion,  KRL paid for office furniture.

Friends

1997 Bainbridge Island Expand
Renovate

1997 - Building expansion and renovation cost of $2,000,000 paid by private 
fundraising (Bainbridge Public Library Board and Bainbridge Community).  KRL 
provided $76,000 to funding.

Donations, Friends

2006 Downtown Bremerton Renovate City of Bremerton 2005/2006 - Major renovation funded by City @ $100K, Gates Foundation @ 
$100K, County @ $100K, CDBG @ $100K, and $125 in City's 2008 Capital 
Improvement budget.
2007 - City budgeted $200K for Phase II renovations 
2014 - City and KRL shared the cost of creating a meeting room 

City, Gates Foudation, CDBG, 
Library

2007 Little Boston New construction Port Gamble S'Klallam 
Tribe

2007 - New library building built from funds raised by Tribe as part of the House 
of Knowledge complex.  KRL and KRL Foundation paid $70K for interior 
furnishings.

Tribe

2010 Systemwide New construction, 
renovation or 
expansion of all 
branches

Owners varied - did 
not revert to the city

KRL developed a strategy to fund system projects with proceeds from a lid-lift 
(levy rate was around 35 cents). MOU's were negotiated with building 
owners(esp. Friends groups) to support the project. The measure failed

Lid lift failed

2013 Port Orchard Renovate City of Port Orchard 2013 - Interior renovation of library funded by KRL, KRL Foundation, Port 
Orchard FOL and City for $127K.

Library, Friends, City

2014 Silverdale New construction
(in process)

KRL 2009 - Letter of Intent to relocate the library to the CK Community Campus 
based on a successful levy lid lift. 
2014 - Board decision to build new library on corner of Bucklin Hill and Blaine.  
Land purchase and building to be paid for by private fundraising.

Lid lift failed
Fundraising

2000-2013 Poulsbo Expand
Renovate

City of Poulsbo 2000 - Construction began for building expansion paid by bond.
2008 -2012 renovations paid by KRL.

City Bond, Library

2012-2015 Kingston TI for new space Kitsap County 2012 - Library receives over $1 million in donations for tenant improvements in 
library portion of community center building.
2014 - Fundraising continuing.  Ground breaking planned for Spring, 2015.

Donations

1995 Tumwater New construction City City election City Bond

1996-98 Olympia New construction City Two bond measures, both failed. There was much controversy over the location LCFA, Bond

1997 Hoodsport Renovation TRL Recycled building - building from N. Mason floated along Hood Canal Library

1998 Ilwaco Renovation City Recycled building City

1998 North Mason New construction TRL Excess timber proceeds Library

2002 Yelm New TI's City, TRL Lease - TRL excess timber proceeds & city funds City, Library

Ki
ts

ap
 R

eg
io

na
l L

ib
ra

ry
Ti

m
be

rla
nd



How Other Libraries Have Funded Capital Projects

Note: When a library is built with a LCFA, the library is owned by Library Capita Facility area. Ownership will be transferred to the library when bond retired

System Date Branch Project Owner Notes Type of Funding
1997 Granite Falls New construction LCFA LCFA, Bond

1994 Mukiltio New construction City City

2001 Monroe New construction LCFA LCFA, Bond

2003 Snohomishish New construction LCFA LCFA, Bond

2006 Arlington New construction LCFA LCFA formed. Bond failed LCFA

2006 Freeland New construction Sno-Isle Library/Friends

2008 Arlington New construction LCFA 2nd Bond failed. LCFA dissolved. LCFA, Bond

2008 Coupeville New construction Sno-Isle LCFA, Bond

2009 Darrington Expansion City City

2013 Camano New construction LCFA LCFA formed. Bond failed LCFA

2014 Camano New construction 2nd election. Bond won LCFA, Bond

1996 Systemwide - All 
branches

New construction  & 
Expansions

FVRL General obligation bond. Two elections - failed both times Bond

1998 Three Creeks New Facility FVRL LCFA Fred Meyer sold site at lower rate LCFA, bond, donations

2001 LaCenter Renovated Hospital Robert Colf Hospital building moved and renovated for library with generous contributions 
from Colf Family Foundation, Friends of Library

Donations

2004 Vancouver & Cascade 
Park

New construction
LCFA

LCFA formed. Bond failed LCFA, Bond

2005 Vancouver & Cascade 
Park

New construction
LCFA

2nd bond failed. LCFA dissolved. LCFA, Bond

2006 Vancouver & Cascade 
Park

New construction
LCFA

LCFA District was redrawn to "eliminate no votes" - donations$43 million bond, 
$5 million donations, LCFA formed, Bond

LCFA, Bond

2009 Battleground New construction FVRL Cash reserves & fundraising Library, Donations

2014+ Woodland
Ridgefiled
Washougal

New construction FVRL Planning Phase 1/3 district support, 1/3 
fundraising and bond if needed

1994 Ridgefield New Facilities Ridgefield Community 
Center Association

Friends, donations

   
   

Sn
o-

Is
le

  F
t. 

Va
nc

ou
ve

r



How Other Libraries Have Funded Capital Projects

Note: When a library is built with a LCFA, the library is owned by Library Capita Facility area. Ownership will be transferred to the library when bond retired

System Date Branch Project Owner Notes Type of Funding
1988 Systemwide New construction

Expansion
KCLS $68 million bond Bond

1996 Redmond New construction LCFA Bond

1999 Issaquah New construction LCFA Bond

2003 Systemwide New construction KCLS $158 million bond failed Bond

2004 New construction
Expansion

$172 million  - 52 projects
-significant research and community work
-capital replacement bond for rexxx 1998 bond
-$.25 per year cost per household

Bond

1996 Systemwide Expand, renovate, add 2 
branches

SCRLD Bond

2003 Moran Prairie New construction LCFA LCFA, Bond

2013 Spokane Valley
3 branches

New construction LCFA LCFA passed. Bond failed LCFA

2014 Spokane Valley
3 branches

New construction LCFA In planning phase for 2nd electons, changing strategy LCFA, Bond

Se
at

tle

1998 Systemwide 4 new branches
22 replaced or 
expanded
New central library

SPL $290.7 million bond measure Bond

Sp
ok

an
e 

Co
un

ty
Ki

ng
 C

ou
nt

y



Date: October 7, 2014 
To: Chair Linda Ishem and members of the Board of Trustees 

From: Linda Farmer, Communications Director; Lisa Bitney, Reading and Materials 

Director Subject: National Friends and Foundation of Libraries Week 

Thank you to Pierce County Library System’s Friends and Pierce County Library Foundation for  
their commitment, enthusiasm, and contributions to bolster reading, learning, and library services 
throughout Pierce County. October 19-25 marks National Friends of Library Week to recognize  
and celebrate friends and foundation groups for volunteering time and resources to help support  
libraries.  

Pierce County Library is indebted to the amazing support Friends and the Foundation give every day 
to keep our libraries running and allowing staff to give better and more service.  

Friends groups support their community library in many areas: 
• Raising funds through book sales and other activities.
• Advocating and raising awareness about library services, needs, and goals in the community

In 2013, Friends of the Libraries contributed $36,668 for library needs. As examples: 
• Supplies for 3D printing event, including 3D printer enclosure–Gig Harbor Library
• Funds toward remodel and grand re-opening–Key Center Library
• Sound system and die cut machine–University Place Library

During the Foundation’s 2013-2014 fiscal year, the Foundation will award $500,000+ to bring books 
to children in day care centers and help give people resources and skills to compete in the job market. 
The Foundation:  

• Connects vital literacy and information resources beyond the scope of tax-based funding.
• Seeks funding from charitable foundations, businesses, and individuals.

Along with other recognition to celebrate National Friends of Libraries week, we are asking 
Pierce County Library’s Board of Trustees to issue the following proclamation to proclaim  
October 19-25, 2014, as “Friends and Foundation of Libraries Week” in Pierce County,  
Washington.  

Neel Parikh, Executive Director * 3005 112t h  St  E Tacoma, WA 98446-2215 *  (253) 548-3300 * FAX (253) 537-4600 * www.piercecountylibrary.org 



Friends and Foundation of Libraries Week 
 

Proclamation of the Pierce County Board of Trustees in recognition of Pierce County Library 

Friends and Pierce County Library Foundation. 

 

 Whereas, Friends of Pierce County Library raise funds through book sales and other 

activities to purchase materials, equipment and furnishings to enhance customer experiences, and 

 

Whereas, Friends advocate and raise awareness about Pierce County Library System’s 

services, needs and goals in the community; and 

 

Whereas, Pierce County Library Foundation connects vital literacy and information 

resources beyond the scope of tax-based funding; and 

 

Whereas, the Foundation seeks funding from charitable foundations, businesses and 

individuals; and 

 

Whereas, the Friends’ and Foundation’s gift of time and enthusiastic commitment to 

Pierce County Library exemplifies strong volunteerism and leads to positive civic engagement 

and the betterment of our community; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved that Pierce County Library Board of Trustees proclaim 

October 19, 2014 through October 25,
 
2014 as 

 

Friends and Foundation of Libraries Week 
 

in Pierce County, Washington, 

 

and urges everyone to join a Pierce County Library Friends’ organization and be a part of Pierce 

County Library Foundation, and thank the Friends and the Foundation for the time and resources 

provided to make our Library and community great. 

 

 

 PROCLAIMED this day, Wednesday, October 15, 2014. 

 
 

 



 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 Date: October 6, 2014  
 To: Chair Linda Ishem and members of the Board of Trustees 

 From: Neel Parikh, Executive Director 
 Subject: 2015 Schedule of Meetings 

 
Attached for your consideration is a draft schedule of 2015 Board of Trustee meetings. As is past practice, 
the meetings would be held on the second Wednesday of the month, from 3:30 - 6:00 pm. However, due to 
budget development, the October meeting would be held on the third Wednesday of the month.  

If you approve the 2015 schedule of meetings, it must be accepted by motion and formally approved by 
Resolution during the November meeting.  

 
 

 

 

 

 

Neel Parikh, Executive Director *  3005 112t h St  E Tacoma, WA 98446-2215 * (253) 548-3300 *  FAX (253) 537-4600 *  www.piercecountylibrary.org 



 
 

PIERCE COUNTY LIBRARY SYSTEM 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 
2015 Meeting Schedule 

 
 

 
Meetings are regularly scheduled from 3:30 – 6:00 on the second Wednesday of 
the month, with the exception of the October meeting, to be held on the third 
Wednesday of the month.  The dates of the 2015 Board of Trustee meetings are 
as follows: 
 

    January 14 
     February 8 
     March 11  
     April 8 
     May 13 
     June 10 
     July 8 
     August 12 
     September 9 
     October 211 
     November 11 
     December 9 
 
 
 

2015 Conferences 
January 30 - February 3 American Library Association Midwinter, Chicago IL 

April 15 - 17 Oregon Library Association/Washington Library Association, Tulalip WA 

June 25 - 30 American Library Association Annual, San Francisco CA 
 

1 3rd  week of the month due to budget development 

 

                                                 


	Board Meeting Agenda October 2014
	Action
	Consent Agenda 
	 3 min.
	1. Approval of Minutes of the September 10, 2014 Regular Meeting 
	15 min.
	1. August Dashboard, Georgia Lomax 
	2. September 2014 Financial Report, Dale Hough
	Unfinished Business
	Executive Session:  At this time on the agenda, the Board of Trustees will recess to Executive Session, per RCW 42.30.110, to discuss personnel issues. 
	 15 min.
	Announcements
	 2 min.
	Adjournment

	_Consent Agenda Page
	1 Board Minutes 20140910
	Consent Agenda
	Board Member Reports
	Officer Reports
	Unfinished Business
	New Business
	Executive Session
	Announcements
	Adjournment


	2 Payroll Benefits Vouchers - September 2014
	_Officers Report Page
	1 August 2014 Dashboard
	Customer Service Philanthropy D

	2 PCLS Monthly Financial Reports - September 2014
	2a PCLS Budget v Actual Sept 2014
	3 Knowledge Transfer
	4 Current Community Engagement
	4a Community Participation 2014
	5 UP Cost Comparison
	6 Florence Davis
	7 Foundation Minutes
	8 Union Newsletter
	_Unfinished Business Page
	1 Board Bylaws Revision_ 20140930
	1a Code of Ethics
	_New Business Page
	1 2015 Budget Memo
	1. Address critical functions affected by the recession
	2. Continue to make smart choices that support a sustainable future
	3. Provide up-to-date, future-oriented services for our customers

	1a 2015 Rev Expend Draft
	1b 2015 Materials Budget Summary Board Memo
	1c 2015 Preliminary Levy Certification 
	1d  2015 IPD
	1e 2015-2019 Cash Flow
	2 Capital Funding other Libs
	New

	3 National Friends and Foundation of Library Week
	National Friends of Libraries Day_BOT memo_10 7 14 (3)

	4 PCLF Annual Report
	4a PCLF 2013-14 Accomplishments
	4b PCL- June 2014
	Stmt of Financial Position
	Stmt Rev & Exp 2013-14

	5 2015 Board Meeting Schedule
	2015 Schedule of Meetings
	2015 BOT Schedule
	2015 Meeting Schedule
	March 11



	1 2015 Budget Memo.pdf
	1. Address critical functions affected by the recession
	2. Continue to make smart choices that support a sustainable future
	3. Provide up-to-date, future-oriented services for our customers




